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CR07335-2019

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box:
Preliminary Information Statement
Definitive Information Statement
2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter
PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
Manila, Philippines
4. SEC |dentification Number
22401
5. BIR Tax Identification Code
000491007
6. Address of principal office

16TH FLOOR CITIBANK TOWER, 8741 PASEO DE ROXAS MAKATI CITY
Postal Code
1227

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code
8314479
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

12 DECEMBER 2019, METROPOLITAN CLUB INC. ESTRELLA COR. AMAPOLA STS.
GUADALUPE VIEJO, MAKATI CITY

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders
Nov 19, 2019
10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor
N/A

Address and Telephone No.
N/A

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common 700,298,616
Preferred 14,366,260

13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

https://edge.pse.com.ph/openDiscViewer.do?edge_no=eb86605d64f9a1adefdfc15ec263a54d
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11/18/2019 Information Statement

Yes No
If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE/ COMMON SHARES

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to
the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

Prime Media Holdings, Inc.
PRIM

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting
References: SRC Rule 20 and
Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders’ Dec 12, 2019

Meeting

Type (Annual or

Special) ANNUAL

Time 2 P.M.

Venue The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner Amapola Sts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City
Record Date Nov 12, 2019

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books
Start Date N/A
End date N/A

Other Relevant Information

Please see attached.

Filed on behalf by:
Name Joanna Manzano
Designation Junior Compliance Officer

https://edge.pse.com.ph/openDiscViewer.do?edge_no=eb86605d64f9a1adefdfc15ec263a54d 2/2
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15 November 2019 SE i"i"F-'{!'.‘-.'! & N2 EXCHANGE

Hon. Vicente Graciano F. Felizmenio, Jr.
Direptay

Securities and Exchange Commission
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex
Roxas Blvd., Metro Manila, Phil pPpines

Attention; M_arkitaﬂdicmiﬂmh_ﬁun_ﬂwﬂ:n_t

Re: Reply to Letter dated 11 November 2019

Dear Dir. Felizmenio:

We write in reply to your letter dated 11 November 2019 to Prime Media Holdings,
Inc. (“the Company”) directling us to submit the Definitive Information Statement, In
compliance with your checklist, we submit horewith the required information as listed below,
for your reference:

4. Signed copy of the Notice and Agenda of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting;

b. Al information are updated as of October 31, 201 9:

¢. Status of Agreement entered into by the Parent Company with Grecnergy
Holdings, Incorporated;

d. Statement that the information is correlated with the Notes to Financial Statements;
Fully disclosed information required regarding Resignalion/ Disagreement:

f. Management's Discussion and Analysis for 2016 vs 2015;

g External Audit Fees,

We trust you find the same in good order and in substantial compliance to the
Securities Regulation Code,

Very truly yours,
Maild Lowtdes G. De Castro
Corporate Secretary
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SEC Number
File Number 22401

PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(formerly First E-bank Corp.)

16" Floor Citibank Tower,
8741 Pasco de Roxas, Makati City

31 December 2018 12 December 2019
(Fiseal Year Ending) {Annual Meeting)

Drefinitive Information Statement
SEC Form 20 - I8

Form Type

Not Applicable

Amendment Desigmation (if applicable)

Not Applicable

_{Secnndary License Type and File Number)

LCuU

Dy

0N SEC Tarm 2005 [PRIM) 2



10.

1.

12.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-I5

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20. . |
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE  ~ ="
v-l-:f.\l |
IR
i

VOl N0V 15 9619

Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

[X] Definitive Information Statement i

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: PRIME MEDIA HDLDING!‘IIH:.':. ]

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
Metro Manila, Philippines

SEC Identification Mumber: Reg. Mo. 22401
BIR Tax |dentification Code: TIN 000-491-007

Address of principal office:
1&F Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City Postal Code 1226

Registrant's telephone number, including area code, Tel, Nos.: (632) 831-4479
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

12 December 2019, Zpm at the Metropolitan Club, Inc. Estrella corner Amapola Sts.,
Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City

Approximate date on which the Information statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders

19 November 2019
In case of Proxy Solicitations

Name of the Person Filing the Statement/ Solicitor: NA
Address and Telephone No.: NA

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and & of the RSA
{information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

| Title of Each Class WNumber of Shares of Common Stack |

Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding |
Eommnn Shares 700,298,616 _|
| Preferred Shares 14,366,260 N

"' Reported by the stock transfer agent as of 31 Octaber 2019,
Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?
Yes[x] No[ ]
If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange, Common Shares

2019 SEC Famm 20-15 {PRIM) 3



FRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To All Stockholders:

Please be advised that PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. will hold its Annual Shareholders' Meeting on
12 Decernber 2019, at 2:00PM. The venue for the meeting shall be at The Metropolitan Club, Inc. Estrells
corner Amapola Sts.,Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City, with the following agenda:

1. Call to Order

2. Proof of Notice and Certification of Quorum

3. Appraval of Minutes of the previous meeting

4. Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
3. Ratification of Management's Act

6. Election of Directors

7. Appointment of External Auditor

8. Other Matters

9. Adjournment

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on the 12 November 2019 as the record date
for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

All proxies must be submitted to the Corporate Secretary on or before 2 December 2019, 5:00
p.m. at the following address:

Prime Media Holdines, Inc.
¢/o Marcventures Holdings, Inc.
4" Flr. Citibank Center
8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

Attention: Atty. Maila Lourdes G. De Castro _ CLRITIE

Very truly yours,

S

Attym Lourde$ G. De Castro

Corporate Secretary

2079 5EC Form 20415 [PRIM) 4




SAMPLE PROXY FORM

The undersigned stockholder of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS INC. (the “Company”} hereby appoints
— or in his/her/its absence, the Chairman of the meeting, as attorney-
in-fact and proxy, to represent and vote all the shares registered in his/her/its name at the annual meeting
of the stockholders of the Company scheduled on 12 December 2019, 2:00 PM, at the Metropolitan Club,
Inc. Estrella corner Amapola Sts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City, and any of its adjournment(s), as fully as
the undersigned can do if present and voting in person, ratifying all action taken on matters that may
properly come before such meeting or its adjournmentys). The undersigned directs the proxy to vote on
the agenda items which have been expressly indicated with "X” helow:

| PROPOSAL ACTION _ |
- _ FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN e
1. Approval of Minutes of the
previous meeting
2. Approval of Management
Report and Audited Financial
Statements
3. Ratification of Management's
ACts fe
4. FElection of Directors: FORALL | AGAINST ALL | ABSTANFOR | FULL
DISCRETION
_ OF PROXY
The nominees are:
Manolito A. Manalo
Bernadeth A, Lim
Juan Victor §. Valdez
Rolando 5. Santos
Antonio L. Tiu
Nominees for  independent
directors:
Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr.
Francisco L. Layug 11l
Instruction: To withhold authority to
vote for any nominee, please mark
"Abstain” box and list the nomefs)
under, ]
3. Election of Reyes Tacandong &
Co. as external auditor
| 6. Other Matters
signedthis _ dayof _ 2019at -
PRINTED MAME OF THE STOCKHOLDER SIGMATURE OF THE
STOCKHOLDER/ AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE

This proxy must be acknowledeed before a notary public and must be submitted to the Corporate
Secretary on or before 2 December 2019, 5:00 p.m. The stockholder giving a proxy has the power to revoke it
either in an instrument in writing duly presented for recording with the Corporate secretary at least five (5)
days prior to the meeting or by personal attendance at the stockholders' meeting. For corporations, the prosy
must be accompanied by a Secretary’s Certificate authorizing an authorized representative to represent the
corporation in the meeting,

J009 SEC Fomm 20415 [ERIM)
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SAMPLE SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I _, of legal age, with address at . being the
Corporate Secretary of __, do hereby certify that:

T In the regular/special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on
o 201 _ at the ___» the following resolution was approved:

“RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of _ _(the
“Corporation”) hereby authorize, and/or __ to
represent the Corporation and to vote all of the Corporation’s shares
registered in the books of the PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS INC. (PRIM} at any
annual stockholders™ meeting of PRIM, particularly, the annual stockholders'
meeting to be held on .+ and any adjournments or
postponements thereaf,

“RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the Board of Directors of the Corporatian
authorize and/or o sign, execute and deliver
nominations and proxies in relation to said annual stockholders' meeting of
PRIM.™

2. This resolution has not been suspended, revoked nor amended.

{date of execution), {place of execution).

C_crrpurate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me an at Makati, Metro Manila, affiant
exhibiting ta me his/her valid proof of identification ___issued at _on ;
Doc. No.

Page Mo,
Book Mo._

Series of 2019,

2019 SEC Fomn 0495 (PRIM) f



INFORMATION STATEMENT AND MAMAGEMENT REPORT
INFORMATION STATEMENT

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEMD US A PROXY
However, if you cannot attend and you wish to send a representative/proxy, please send your proxy letter
to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before 2 December 2019, 5:00 p.m., a sample of which is
attached to this report, On the day of the annual stockholders’ meeting on 12 December 2019, your
representative should bring the proxy letter and present valid proof of identification (e.g. passport,
driver’s license, company ID or TIN card).

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, Time and Place of Annual Meeting of Security Holders

The Annual Meeting of the stackholders of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. will be held on 12 December
2019, at 2:00 PM, at the Metropolitan Club, Inc. Estrella corner Amapola 5ts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati
City.

The mailing address of the Company is at cfo Marcventures, 4" Fir, Citibank Center Bldg. Paseo de
Roxas, Makati City. Please address the letters to the corporate secretary of the Company, Atty. Maila
Lourdes G. De Castro,

This Information Statement will be first sent or given to security holders on or around the 19 Mevemnber
2019,

Item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

There is no proposed corporate action or matter to be taken up at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting that
will give rise to the exercise of appraisal right by the dissenting stockholders,

The Revised Corporation Code limits the exercise of the appraisal right by any dissenting stockholder to
the following instances:

a. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting
the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authaorizing preferences in respect superior
to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate
existence (Section 80);

b. In case of the sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets (Section 80);

€. In case of merger or consolidation (Section 80);
d. In case of investments in another corporation, business or purpose {Section 41).

The appraisal right may be exercised by making a written demand on the corporation within thirty (30)
days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair value of his shares; provided, that
failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. If the
proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the corparation shall pay to such stockholder, upon
surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior
to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation aor depreciation in anticipation of
such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the stockholders,
the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the shares, it shall be
determined and appraised by three {3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be named by the
stockholder, another by the carporation, and the third by the two thus chosen. The findings of the majority
of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the corparation within thi rty (30) days
after such award is made; Provided, That no payment shall be made to any dissenting stockholder unless
the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such payment; and Provided,
further, That upon payment by the corporation of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholders shall
farthwith transfer his shares to the corporation.

20019 SEC Forrn 20005 [PRIM)] 7



The appraisal right shall be exercised in accordance with Title X of the Revised Corporation Code,
Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No director or officer of the Company or any nominee for election as director of the Company or any
associate of the foregoing, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or
otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon, other than election to office as director of the Company. None
of the officers or directors ar any of their associates has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, in any
of the matters to be acted upon in the stockholders’ meeting.

Mone of the directors of the Company has informed the Company that he intends to oppose any action to
be taken by the Company at the stockholders' meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ltem 4, Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

As of 31 October 2019, the following shares of common and preferred stock of the Company were
outstanding:

Number of
Class Qutstanding Shares
Commaon F00,298,616
Preferred
Series A 14,366,260
Series B Mil

As of 31 October 2019, the foreign equity ownership on a per class basis is as follows:

Number of
Class Outstanding Shares
Comman 1,031,360
Preferred 109,650

All registered owners of the Company's common stack at the close of business on 17 Movember 2019 will
be entitled to notice and vote at its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on 12 December 2019.

Each common share is entitled to one (1} vote on all matters to be taken Up during the Annual Meeting
except in the case of electing directors where one (1) share is entitled to Seven {7} votes, i.e. each share
is entitled to as many votes as there are Board seats to be filled up.

Each stockholder is entitled to cumulate his votes and cast the same in favor of one or several nominees
of his choice in such proportion as he shall deem fit, provided that, the total votes cast do not exceed the
number of his shares multiplied by the number of directors to be elected. There is no condition precedent
to the exercise by the stockhalders of their cumulative voting right,

Security Ownership of Persons Owning More Than 5% of the Company's Outstanding Common Stock

As of 31 October 2019, the Company knows of no one who is directly or indirectly the record or beneficial
owner of mare than five percent (5%) of the Company’s capital stock except as set forth below:

Type of Mame and | Mame and Citizenship Mame of Mo, of Percent
Class address of address of Beneficial Owner | Shares Held | of class
record owner | beneficial owner b Relationship
and and relationship with Record
relationship with Issuer Owner
with Issuer
Common | PCD Nominee | RYM Business | Filipino RYM  beneficial
Corporation Management owner of the | 463,555,085 | 66.20%
(Registered Corp./ shares.
Owner in the | 106 Paseo de
Books of the | Roxas Ave. Makati
| City i

2079 50 Form 2015 [PRIM)




Transfer Stockholder

Agent)
Mairete Asset | Filipino Mairete Asset
Holdings, Inc. Holdings, inc, 77,178,901 %
16 Floor Citibank is beneficial
Tower, Paseo de owner of  the
Roxas, Makati shares.
Stockholder .
Caulfield Heights, | Filipino I Caulfield Heights,
Ine. Inc. is the | 35,000,000 5%
&  Ozamis St beneficial  owner
Alabang Hills, of the shares.
Muntinlupa City
_ Stockholder

RYM Business Management Corp, and Mairete Asset Holdings Inc. has authorized and/or appointed by way
of proxy, the Chairman of the Board of Prime Media Holdings Inc. to represent and vate the its shares in
the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. Caulfield Heights Inc. has authorized and/ar appointed by way of proxy,
Isidro €. Alcantara, Jr. or its duly authorized representative to attend and vote on its behalf,

Security Ownership of Management as of 31 October 2019

' Amount and
Type of Name and Address of nature of - Fercent
Creﬁs Owner Beneficial Citizenahip of class
ownership
Commeon Manolito Manalo 1 Filipino 0.0%
) _ Direct
Commaon Rolando 5, Santos 1000 Filipino 0.0%
_ ) Direct
Common Bernadeth A, Lim 1 Filipino 0.0%
| Direct
Commaon Juan Victor §. Valdez 1 Filipino 0.0% ]
= _ Direct [
Common Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. 1 Filipino 0.0%
Direct _ -
Commaon Francisco L. Layug Ili 1 Filipino 0.0% B
Direct -
Aggregate for above named 1,005
officers and directors

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

The Company is not aware of the existence of persons holding five percent (5%) or mare af the Company's
shares of common stock under a voting trust or similar agreement.

Changes in Control
There were na changes in control of the management of the Corporation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, please note that on 17 July 2019, the Company was notified by its parent
company, RYM Business Management Corporation ("RYM”), that it entered into an agreement {“Subject
Agreement”) with Greenergy Holdings Incorporated and its related entities {collectively, “Investors"),
whereby the Investors proposed the possible investment, infusion and contribution of various assets
("Investment Properties”) into the Company in exchange for shares of the Company. The proposed
investment may require the increase of the authorized capital stock of the Company for the infusion of
said assets. The proposed investment is subject to the conduct of due diligence audit on the assets that
will be transferred to the Company, as well as to confirmation of valuation of the same in accordance with
the valuation rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, The proposed transaction is subject to the
execution of definitive agreements, issuance of the appropriate approvals by the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of the companies, and compliance with the requirements of the Revised Corporation Cade,
the Securities Regulations Code and other applicable laws

2019 SEC Form 2005 [PRIMI Q



As disclosed with the PSE on 15 October 2019, the following relevant periods under the Subject Agreement,
were extended to give additional time to finalize the due diligence audit on the Investment Properties, as
follows:

1. An additional period of one hundred forty {140} days from 15 October 2019 for the
validation and verification of titles and the issuance of the appraisal reports and
compliance with the regulatory requirements, including, but not limited ta, securing a
ruling from the Bureau of Internal Revenue that the transaction is considered a tax-free
exchange;

2. An additional period of one hundred forty (140} days from 15 October 2019 to
execute the first {1%) tranche of the Investment; and

3. An additional period of two hundred ten (210) days from 15 October 2019 to execute the (2™} tranche
of the Investment”.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers
Directors

The following are the names, ages, citizenship, periods of service of the incumbent directors of the
Company as of 31 October 2019:

Period during which individual
MName Age Citizenship has served as such

Manolita A. Manalo | 52 Filipino ] May 2013 to the present
Juan Victor S, Valdez 48 Filipino May 2013 to the present
Bernadeth A. Lim 39 Filiping May 2013 to the present
Rolanda S, Santos 69 Filipino August 2017 to the present
Jahinny Y, Aruego, Jr. Filipino

| (Independent Director) 51 | | May 2013 to the present
Francisco L. Layug Il| Filipino
(independent director) | &7 December 2017 to the present

The business experience of each of the incumbent directors of the Company for the last five (5) years is
as follows:

Manolito A. Manalo was elected as President and Directar in May 2013. He is the co-founder and managing
partner of Ocampe and Manalo Law Firm. He is a Director of Panalpina World Transpart (Phils.], Inc.. He
also sits as Director and Corporate Secretary in Kajima Philippines Inc. He began his law practice as an
associate in Leovillo C. Agustin Law Offices from 1995 to 1996 and Britanico Consunji and Sarmiento from
1996 to 1997, He later headed the Legal Division of Air Philippines from 1997 to 1999. He is also the
resident agent of Air Seoul and Chailease Finance Co. Ltd from 2017 to present, and of Turkish Airtines
from 20114 to 2017,

Bernadeth A. Lim was elected as Vice President and Director in May 2013, She is a junior partner of
Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. She is the President and a director of Morrison Express Philippines Corp
fram January 2017 to present. She is also a director and corporate secretary of Solen Innovations Holdings
Inc. from November 2016 to Present. She is a director Imeoney Comparison Philippines, Inc. from June 2015
to present. She is also a director and the corporate secretary of Bounce Electronic Music Praduction and
DJ School from October 2014 to Present and Tone Def Music Group, Inc. from June 2014 to present. She js
a director and the resident agent of Proline AG Services, Inc. She is the resident agent of New Mortheast
Electric Group High Voltage Switchgear Co., Ltd from November 2017 to May 2018 and of ¥V Air Corporation
from October 2016 to November 2016. She is a Director and Assistant Corporate secretary of Kajima
Fhilippines Incorporated, Ripple Mobile Technology Solutions Inc., and Anawhan Realty Inc. She also sits
as a Director in Ayannah Information Solutiens Inc. and HB Leisure She is also a resident agent of Tigerair
Taiwan Co. Ltd. starting the year of 2018.

Juan Yictor 5. Yaldez was elected as Director in May 2013. He is a junior partner of Ccampo and Manalo
Law Firm. He is a director, Vice-President for Legal Affairs and Corporate Secretary of PATTS College of
Aeronautics, one of the country’s leading aeronautic schools, He also sits as director in Segundo Travel &
Tours Inc,, Hafti Tours Inc., and Kajima Philippines Incorporated.

2019 SEC Form 20405 (PRI 10



Rolando 5. Santos was elected as Director in August 2017, He was elected as Assistant Treasurer in October
2013, He serves as Vice President and Treasurer of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc. and as
Treasurer of Marcventures Holdings Inc. and Marcventures Mining and Development Carp, He was previausly
the Branch Head/ Cluster Head for Makati Branches of Equitable PCI Bank which was eventually acquired
by BDO fram 2001 to 2013,

Francisco L. Layug [Il is the President of Rotary Club of Pasay. He was the President of Electronic Security
aystem Corp. (ESS5COR) from 1992-2015. He is currently a Consultant of ESSCOR.

Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. was elected as an Independent Director in May 2013, He is a partner in Aruego Bite
and Associates. He is a director of Excel Unified Land Resources Corporation. He is the Corporate Secretary
and Legal Counsel for Agility, Inc. and A. V. Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Insurance Broker, Inc. He is a Legal
Consultant of Loranzana Food Corporation, National Steel Corporation and Margarita Land and Management
Co., Inc. He is the assistant rehabilitation receiver for Pacific Activated Carbon, Inc., Pet Plans, Inc.,
Bacnotan Steel Industries, Inc. and All Asia Capital and Trust Corporation. He is an assistant liguidator of
East Asia Capital Corporation, Reynolds Philippines Corparation.

Officers

As of October 31, 2019, the following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and periods of service of
the incumbent officers of the Company:

| | - Period during which
Name Age Position ' Citizenship individual has served as
such
‘Manolito A, Manalo | 52 | President & CEO Filipino May 2013 up to present
' Bernadeth A. Lim 39 | Vice President Filipino May 2013 to present
Maila Lourdes G. De Corporate Secretary, Filiping September 2019 to
Castro 44 | Compliance Officer and present
Data Frivacy Officer*
| Rolando S. Santos 69 | Treasurer : Filipino October 2013 up to present
Christopher Sam S. Asst, Corparate Filipino May 2014 up to present
Salvador 36 | Secretary/ Corporate
| Information Officer

*appointed on 03 September 2019

Christopher 5am 5. Salvador was initially appointed as Corporate Information Officer in 2014 and on
August 22, 2017, he was elected Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company. He is a junior partner of
Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is the Corporate Secretary of Timebound Trading, Inc. and Assistant
Corporate Secretary for AirSWIFT Transport, Inc, {formerly lIsland Transvoyager, Inc.) and Bacuit
Airholdings, Inc.

Maila Lourdes G. De Castro was appointed Corporate Secretary on September 3, 2019, She also serves as
the Vice President and Head of Legal, Co-Assistant Corporate Secretary, Co-Compliance Officer, Co-
Corporate Information Officer and Data Privacy Officer of Marcventures Holdings, Inc and Caorporate
Secretary of Marcventures Mining and Development Corp.

Memination Committee and Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The Mominations Committee has screened the following nominees for election or re-election on 12
December 2019, The Mominations Committee determined that the candidates possess all the qualifications
and none the disqualifications as director or independent director.

Mominees for Regular Directors

Manolito A. Manalo
Juan Victor 5. Valdez
Bernadeth A. Lim
Antonio L. Tiu
Raolando 5, Santos

Nominees for Independent Director

Jahnny Y. Aruego, Jr.
Francisco L. Layug 1|
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Please refer to the above biographical details of current directors that have been re-nominated. Only Mr,
Tiu was not re-nominated.

All nominations for regular and independent director have been reviewed and approved by the Company's
Momination and Compensation Committee.

The independent directors were both nominated by Manelito A. Manalo. The nominator is not related to
the persons he has nominated for independent directors.

The procedure and selection of the independent directors were made in accordance with Section 38 of the
Code and the Company's By-laws. In compliance with the provisions of Rule 38 of the Amended
Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code, the Company's By-laws was
amended on 30 September 2004,

The gualifications of all nominated directors including the nominated independent directors have been
pre-screened in accordance with the rules of the Company. Only the nominees whose names appear on
the Final List of Candidates are eligible for election as directors (independent or otherwise), Mo other
nominations were entertained after the preparation of the Final List of Candidates and no further
nominations shall be entertained or allowed during the annual stockholders’ meeting,

The Company undertakes to submit the updated Certifications of Qualification for the Independent
Directors within 30 days from their election in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular Mo.5 Series of
2017,

The nomination and election of independent director shall be in accardance with Section 38, as amended
of Republic Act 8799 or the Securities Regulation Code and article |1, Section 3 of the Company's By-Laws
as amended by the Board of Directors on September 29, 2004 and the Stockholders an September 30, 2004,

The Nemination Committee is composed of Francisco L. Layug Ill as Chairman, and Juan Victor 5. Valdez
and Diane Madelyn C. Ching as members.

In accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 4 Series of 2017, both Independent Directars {ID) have
not exceeded the maximum cumulative term of nine (9) years. Furthermore, the Company understands
that after a term of {9) years, the independent director shall be perpetually barred from re-election as
such in the same Company, but may continue to qualify as a non-independent director. At the instance
that a company wants to retain an independent director who has served for nine {9) years, the Board
should provide meritorious justification/s and seek shareholders’ approval during the annual shareholders’
meeting; and Reckoning of the cumulative nine-year is from 2012.

Peried in Which Directors and Executive Officers Should Serve

The directors and executive officers should serve for a period of ane {1} year.

Term of Office of a Director

The seven (7) directors shall be stockholders and shall be elected annually by the stockholders owning
majority of the outstanding capital stock for a term of one (1) year and shall serve until the election and
qualification of their successors.

Any vacancy in the board of directors other than removal or expiration of term may be filled by a majority
vote of the remaining members thereof at a meeting called for that purpose if they still constitute a
quorum, and the director or directors so chosen shall serve for the unexpired term.

Significant Employees

The business of the Company is not highly dependent on the services of certain key personnel, There is
no employee who, while not being an executive officer, is expected by the Company to make a significant
contribution to the business,

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships either by consanguinity or affinity up to the fourth civil degree among
directors, executive officers and nominees for election as directors,

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
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The Company is not aware that any one of the incumbent directors and officers and persans nominated to
become director/s and officer/s has been the subject of a bankruptcy petition or a conviction by final
judgment in criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic vielations and other minor
offenses, or has been by judgment or decree found to have violated securities or commodities law and
enjoined from engaging in any business, securities, commadities or banking activities for the past five (3)
years until the date of this Information Sheet.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

As at September 30, 2019, Bright Kindle Resources Corporation has an outstanding payable balance of
P1.87 million to the company which represents a non-interest bearing advances to related party
transactions. Alsa, as at September 30, 2019, the Company has a Loans receivable from Marcventures
Mining and Development Corporation amounting ta P26 million with an interest of ten percent {104} per
annum. The payable amount of PhP1.87 million from Bright Kindle Resources Corporation is subsumed in
the amount of PhP7,940,000.00 for outstanding balance in 2018 due from related parties as stated in Mote
14 {Related Party Transactions) of the Notes to the Audited Financial Statement far the pericd ending 31
December 2018 on pages 22 and 23 thereof.

Resignation/Disagreement

Atty. Diane Madelyn Ching tendered her resignation as Director, Corporate Secretary, Compliance Officer
and Data Privacy Officer effective 3 September 2019. The resignation of Atty. Ching was not prompted by
any disagreement as it was purely voluntary on the part of both parties.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The aggregate compensation paid in 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and estimated to be paid in 2019, {1) to the

Chief Executive Officer and four (4) most highly compensated officers of the Company, as a group; and (2}
to all key officers, other officers, and directors as a group, is set out below:

!__.[*_J'qrheﬁ__ Edsa'_rr"on Year Salary | Bonus | Others
Manolite A, Mahalo Chafrman & 0 o
President
Bernadeth A, Lim | Vice President 0 0
Juan Victor Valdez Director 0 0
Rolando S. Santos Treasurer i] i]
Diane  Madelyn C. | Corporate Secretary f i]
| Ching
Ageregale for above 2015 0 i 22,222
named officers 2016 o a 25,000
2017 i) 0 30.000
2018 0 4] 35,000
2019 est) 0 0 35,000
Al Directors and - |
Officers as a group 2015 0 [ 27,778
unnamed 2018 0 0] 30,000
2017 0 0 25,000
2018 0 4] 25,000
L 201%est) 4] 0 100,000

There are no special employment contracts between the Corporation and its directors and officers,
The directors are entitled to nominal per diem amounting to P10,000.00 for attending board meetings
and PhP 5,000.00 for attending committee meetings

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

a) Independent Public Accountants, Reyes Tacandong & Co. (RTC) will stand for re-election as
the Corporation’s external auditors for the year 2019 which shall be subject to shareholders'
approval during the Annual Meeting in compliance with SRC Rule 68, Paragraph 3(bi{iv) which
provides that the external auditor should be rotated every five (5) vears or earlier or the
handling partner shall be changed,
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b) RTC was first elected as the Company's Independent Public Accountant in December 2014,
Representatives of RTC will be present during the annual meeting and will be given the
apportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. They are also expected to respond
to appropriate questions if needed. There was no event where RTC and the Company had any
disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure. Except as stated in the repost
of independent auditors, the Corporation has no disagreements with its auditors.

c) For the audit of the Company's Annual financial statements and services provided in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, the aggregate amounts to
be billed or already billed excluding YAT and out of pocket expenses (OPE) by RTC
amounts/amounted to P370,000.00 and P340,000.00 for 2018 and 2017 respectively.

The 2018 audit of the Company is in compliance with Rule 68, paragraph (3)(b)ix) of the Amended
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, which provides that the external auditor should be rotated, or the
handling partner changed, every five (5) years or earlier and that a two-year cooling off period should be
observed in the re-engagement of the same signing partner or individual auditar.

At present, RTC account partner handling the Corporation is Belinda B. Fernando and she has been the
handling partner since 2014. She is due for rotation in 201%. A two-year cooling off period shall be ohserved
in the re-engagement of the same signing partner or individual.

The Company created an Audit Committee composed of the following members: Bernadeth A. Lim, Juan
Francisco L. Layug Ill and Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr (Chairman). As provided for in its charter, the objective of
the Audit Committee is to assist the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by reviewing
the financial reporting process, the system of internal control, risk management, EovVernance processes,
the audit process and the company's process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and its
own code of business conduct.

Iltem 8. COMPENSATION FLANS

No action is proposed to be taken during the stockholders’ meeting with regard to any banus, profit sharing,
pension/retirement plan, granting of any extension of options, warrants or rights to purchase any
securities.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Mo matter will be taken up involving any issuance or exchange of securities.
ltem 9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHAMGE

There is nothing to disclose with respect to authorization or issuance of securities.
ltem 10, MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
Fursuant to the previous approvals of the Board of Directors and Stockholders of the Company sometime
in the year 1997 which was duly approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission and duly disclosed
to the Exchange, the Company issued 1,289,279 additional shares on May 30, 2016 arising from the

conversion of 32,231,970 preferred shares at the conversion rate of 25 preferred shares to 1 common
share,

As of 31 October 2019, Change(s) in Number of Issued and Outstanding Shares are as follows:

Before After
Common Shares! PRIM (Foreign) 1,217,859 4,183,650
Commaon Shares/ PRIM {Local) 699,002,326 696,115,056
Total 700,220,185 700,298,616
Preferred Shares/ PRIM (Foreign) 109,650 109,650
Preferred Shares/ PRIM [Local) 16,217,380 14,256,610
Tatal 16,327,030 14,366,260

2017 5EC Fonm 20-13 [FRIM] 14



D. OTHER MATTERS

Iltem 15. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS & OTHER PROPOSED ACTION/S

The following matters shall be submitted to the vote of stockholders of the Company during the
stockholders® meeting.

Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting

Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
Ratification of Management's Act

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

h s a1

Action is to be taken on the approval of the Minutes of the previous stockholders’ meecting. The Summary
of the minutes therefor is provided below:

1.

The stockholders approved the minutes of the meeting of the last Annual General Meeting of the
stockholders held last 03 December 2018,

The stackholders approved the Management/President's Report and the Annual Report for the
year 2018 including the Corporation's Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The stockholders ratified all acts of the Board of Directors and Management for the previous year
Up to even date.

The stockholders approve and ratified the executed management agreement between the
Corporation and RYM Business Management Corparation,

The stockholders elected the following as directors of the Corporation to serve far the period
2018-2019 and until their successors shall have been duly elected as qualified, to wit:

Manolito A. Manalo

Jduan Victor 5. Valdez

Bernadeth A, Lim

Rolando 5. Santos

Diane Madelyn C. Ching

Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. as independent director
Francisco Layug, as independent director

mranow

o

The stockholders approved the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co., as the External Auditor of
the Corporation for the ensuing year,

On the approval of the management agreement between the Corporation and RYM, the board secks the
ratification by the stockholders of the execution of the said agreement in accordance with Section 44 of
the Corporation Code. Under Section 44 of the Corporation Cade, a corporation is allowed to execute a
management agreement with another corporation, provided the same is approved by the board of directors
and stockhaolders owning at least two-thirds (2/3) of the total outstanding capital stock entitled to vote in
the event that a stockholder representing the same interest of both the managing and the managed
corporations owns or control more than ane-third (1/3) of the total outstanding capital stock entitled to
vate of the managing corporation.

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders was held on 03 December 2018, and was attended by sharehalders,
the Board of Directors, and various officers of the Corpaoration. The shareholders were allowed to cast
their votes on each agenda item presented to them for approval, with the number of votes approving
each agenda item indicated in their respective sections in the Minutes, The shareholders were alsa given
the opportunity to ask questions, express an opinion, and make suggestions on various issues related ta
the Corporation. The Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on 03 December 2018

is uploaded in PRIM’s website thru the following hyperlink;

http: //www.primemediaholdingsinc.com/ company-disclosures/ minutes-of -all-seneral -special -
stockholders-meetings/
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Summary of the Minutes of the Board Meetings for the year 2019 for ratification of management's
actions.

Meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the following dates:

18 February 2019
27 February 2019
12 April 2019

18 August 2019

3 September 2019
24 October 2019

a1 2 = R T - 1

At these meetings, operational and financial reports were discussed. In addition, the following matters
were taken up:

1. 18 February 2019
- Authority to process transfer of the title of the subject property to Travel Café Food
Corporation

2. 27 February 2019
- Authority to reinstate loan agreement with Mr. Rizaldo F. Fagutan
- Authority to cancel the Deed of Assignment in favor of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas in Transfer
Certificate No. RT-90238
Authority to inguire and obtain documents relating to the Corporation’s condominium unit in
Paragon Plaza

3. 12 April 2019
Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for the year 2018

4. 18 August 2019
- Appointment of legal counsel for the case entitled LRC Case Mo.2019-198 entitled “In Re
Petition For Issuance Of Mew Owner’s Duplicate Of Transfer Certificate Title Mo, (107361}
78097 Of The Registry Of Deeds Of Parafiaque City” pending before the Regional Trial Court
Branch 274 of Paranaque City.

5. 3 September 2019
- Postponement of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
- Acceptance of the resignation of Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching as Director, Caorporate
Secretary, Compliance Officer and Data Privacy Officer
Appointment of Atty. Maila Lourdes G. De Castro as Corporate Secretary, Compliance Officer
and Data Privacy Officer
Change of Bank Signatories

6, 24 October 2019

- Setting the schedule of the Annual Stockholder's Meeting for the vear 2019

- Approval of the Material Related Party Transaction Policy
Item 16. MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TQ BE SUBMITTED
All corporate actions to be taken up at the annual stockholders’ meeting will be submitted to the
stockholders of the Registrant for their approval in accordance with the requirements of the Corporation
Code.
Matters not required to be submitted are the Call to Order and Certification of Notice and Quorum.
ltem 17. Voting Procedures
In the election of directors, the seven (7) nominees garnering the highest number of votes will be elected
as members of the board of directors, provided that there shall always be at least two (2} members who
are independent directors.

For all other matters proposed to be acted upon, the affirmative vote of the shareholders representing a
majority of the outstanding common capital stock will be needed for approval.
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Manner of Yoting

Each commaon share entitles the persan in whose name it is registered in the books of the Company to one
vote with respect to all matters to be taken up during the annual meeting of stockholders.

In the election of directors, each stockhalder may vate such number of shares for as many persans as there
are directors to be elected or may cumulate said shares and give one nominee as many votes as the number
of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his share shall equal, or he may distribute them on
the same principle among as many nominees as he shall see fit, provided, that the total number of votes
cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to
be elected,

Woting Requirements

(a) With respect to the election of directors, candidates who received the highest number af votes
shall be declared elected as directors of the Company.

{b) All other matters presented for approval of the stockholders of the Company require the
affirmative vote of the stockholders representing a majority of the outstanding stock of the
Company

Method by which Votes will be Counted

Unless required by law or demanded by a stockholder present or represented at the meeting and entitled
to vote thereat, voting need not be by ballot and will be done by show of hands.

The Corporate Secretary will be responsible for counting votes based on the number of shares entitled to
vote owned by the stockholders who are present or represented hy proxies at the Annual theeting of the
Stockholders.

MANAGEMENT REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

MANAGEMENT REPORT
I. Financial Statements

The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended as of 31 December 2018 are
attached to this report.

Il. Information on Independent Accountants and other Related Matters

The Company’s financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 have been
audited by RTC, independent auditors, as stated in their reports appearing herein.

Ms. Belinda B. Fernando is the Company's current audit partner. We have not had any disagreements
on accounting and financial disclosures with our current external auditars for the periods ar any
subsequent interim period.

There were no disagreements with RTC on any matter of accounting and financial disclosure.

The following table sets out the ageregate fees incurred for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017 for professional services rendered by RTC:

2018 2017
Audit and Audit-Related Services P370,000 340,000

The Audit Committee reviewed the nature of non-audit services rendered by RTC and the corresponding
fees and concluded that these are not in conflict with the audit functions of the independent auditor, The
Audit Committee has an existing policy to review and pre-approve the audit and non-audit services
rendered by the Company's independent auditor. It does not allow the Corporation to engage the
independent auditor for certain non-audit services expressly prohibited by regulations of the SEC to be
performed by an independent auditor for its audit clients. This is to ensure that the independent auditor
maintains the highest level of independence from the Corporation both in fact and appearance.
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lll. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis is based on the audited financial statements as at 31 December
2018 and 2017, prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and
accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements and should be read in conjunction with the audited

consolidated financial statements.

Summary Financial Information

The Financial Statements as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended 31 December

2017 and 2016 are hereto attached,

The following table sets forth the summary financial information for the vears ended 31 December

2018 and 2017:

Summary of Income Statement

Years Ended December 31

2018 2017 2016
INCOME 1,819,791 2,201,162 R2,973,625
EXPENSES 35,774,296 30,105,614 28,653,740
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE TAX (33,954,505)  (27,904,452)  (25,680,115)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (9,381,478) 531,234 590,871
NET INCOME (LOSS) (24,573,027)  (28,435,686)  (26,270,986)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 200,000 60,000 (10,000)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (R24,373,027)  (P28,375,686) (P26,280,986)
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE {R0.04) (R0.04) (R0.04)
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Summary of Balance Sheet

December 31

2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets R44 822 195 B16,802,522
Noncurrent Assets 1,758,193 71,714,190

E46,580,388 REB,516,712

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities B187,303,080 R193,071,645

Noncurrent Liability = 9,556,800

187,303,080 202,628,445

Equity (140,722,692)  (114,111,733)

E46,580,388 RES, 516,712

Summary of net cash flows

Years Ended December 31

2018 2017 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (R54,922,599) RE95,268 (R70,523,055)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 44,925,331 (1,577,000) =
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 13,880,000 - =
MET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 3,882,732 (981,732} (70,523,055)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING

OF YEAR = 1,720,231 2,701,963 73,225,018
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR B5,602,963 B1,720,231 R2,701,963

2018 vs, 2017

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P41.94 Million or equivalent to 47.38% from P88.52 Million
in 2017 to P46.58 Million in 2018. The significant changes were mainly due to the following:

Cash increased significantly from P1.72 million as of 31 December 2017 to P5.60 million as of
December 31, 2018, an increase of P3.88 million was brought mainly by the proceeds of sale of
the Investment property in Legaspi City, Albay sold to Pacific Mall Corporation.

Receivable increased by P24.90 million due to the interest bearing loan agreement entered into
by the company with Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation.

Increase in Other current assets of P3.67 million was brought by the payment of a prepaid
insurance and a creditable withholding tax of P3.42 million representing a 6% tax withheld by
Pacific Mall Corporation.

Due from related parties decreased significantly by 4,43 million or eguivalent to 35.69% that
pertains to the collection and offset on advances from RYM Business Management Corparation,
Decrease in Mon-Current assets of P69.96 million or equivalent to 97.55% resulted from the sale
of investment property in Legazpi City, Albay amounting to P6%.88 million.

Liabilities decreased by P15.33 million or equivalent to 7.56% which is mainly due to the reversal
of deferred tax liability and a decrease in the accrued interest, taxes and registration expenses
brought by the payment to BSP of a compromise fee amounting to P20 million.

The company incurred a net loss of ©24.37 million in 2018 which resulted to decrease in the total
stockholder's equity.
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Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P24.57 million in 2018, P3.9 million or equivalent to 13.58% lower
as compared to 2017 reported net loss of P28.44 million. The significant changes were mainly due to the
fallowing:

¢ Interest income on loans receivable increased by #0.43 million brought by the Loan agreement
with Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation,

» Rental income increased by ®0.85 this period or equivalent ta 303%.

* Recovery of asset previously written off is P0.25 million this period compared to P0.17 million
last year or an increase of .08 million or 47.73% equivalent.

= Loss resulted from the sale of the Company's Legaspi Property in favor of Pacific Mall Corporation
for 51.82 million. The sale resulted to a loss of P24.9 millien representing the difference between
the selling price as well as taxes paid by the Company and the fair market value of the Legaspi
property as recognized in the books.

= Professional fee increased by P0.80 million or equivalent to 44.25%. The increase pertains to
payment of legal fees and PSE Listing fees.

= Association dues for the period is 2,55 million as compared to nil for 2017. The 100% increase is
mainly due to payment of arrears on associations dues to Landco Business Park as well as penalties
from years 2011 to September 2018 concerning the Legaspi Property.

¢ Outside Services increased by P0.14 million or 10.60% for payment of services for asset
management, transfer and registration..

= Taxes and licenses increased from P0.46 million in 2017 to P1.45 million in 2018 or P.99 million
higher, due to the increase in payment of Documentary stamp tax and Real property taxes for the
current year.

= Representation expenses increased by P0.9 million that is due to payment of representation fees
to legal counsels on pending cases involving the company,

= Depreciation increased by 0.24 million due to the depreciation of a new purchased transportation
eguipment,

+  Other expenses increased by P0.43 million due to recognition of other miscellaneous expense and
representation expenses,

2017 vs, 2016

statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P27.94 Million or equivalent to 23.99% from
P116.46 million in 2016 to P88.52 million in 2017. The significant changes were mainly due to the
fiollowing:

e Cash decreased significantly from P2, 70 million as of December 31, 2016 to #1.72 million as of 31
December 2017, a decrease of 0.97 million or equivalent to 36.06% pertains to the payment of
administrative expenses.

* Receivable decreased by P2.07 million or equivalent to 45.80% due to the setup of allowance for
doubtful accounts on cash advances.

= Other current assets decreased due to the reversal of interest receivable amounting to
F0.60 million or equivalent to 74.29%.

* Due from Parent Company decreased significantly by P27.58 million or eguivalent to 68.95%
pertains to the collection on advances made to RYM Business Management Corporation,
Equipment increase pertains to purchase of Toyota Hilux amounting to 1,58 million.

Liabilities increased by P0.43 million or equivalent to 0.21% mainly due to increase in deferred
tax liability.

+  The company incurred a net loss of P28,44 million in 2017 which resulted to decrease in the total
stackholder’s equity,

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P28.44 million in 2017, P2.16 million or equivalent to 8.24% higher
as compared to 2016 reported net loss of P26.27 million. The significant changes were mainly due to the
following:

* Recovery of accounts written-off decreased by P0O.58 million or 77.67% due to lower collection
this year.
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= Provisions for impairment loss increased by 2,13 million due to set up of allowance for doubtful
accounts on cash advances made to the previously engaged processing the transfer and
registrations.

+ Professional fees decreased by P1.11 million or equivalent to 38,12% due to lower legal fees in
2017,

=  Dutside services increased from P1.09 million in2016 to ®1.32 million in 2017, ©0.22 million or
equivalent to 20.39% primarily due to engagement of lawyers to attend to litigation cases in which
the Company is involved.

= Taxes and licenses decreased from P0.65 million in 2016 to P0.46 million in 2017, 29.77% in due
payment of Documentary stamp tax on 2016,

* Rent decreased by £0.09 million or equivalent to 31.56% due to lower association dues in 2017

= Salaries and allowance decreased by P0.13 million or equivalent to 100,00% due to paid allowance
on contractual employees in 2016 and none in 2017,

+  Depreciation expense increased by P0.08 million due to the increase in transportation equipment.

=  Other expenses increased by P0.53 million due to recognize of other miscellaneous expense from
interest receivable,

2016 vs. 2015

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Compary decreased by P30.44 Million or equivalent to 20,99% from P145.00 Millian
in 2015 to P114.56 Million in 2016. The significant changes were mainly due to the following:

Cash decreased significantly from #73.22 million as of December 3, 2015 to
#21.70 million as of December 31, 2016, a decrease of 70.52 million ar equivalent to %6.31% pertains
mainly to the payment of administrative expenses and advances made to RYM Business Management
Corporation. The advances were subsequently collected in 2017,

Due from Parent Company increased significantly by P40.00 million or equivalent to 100.00% pertains
to the advances made to RYM Business Management Corparation.

The company incurred a net loss of P27.61 million in 2016 which resulted to decrease in the total
stockholder's equity.

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P27.60 million in 2016, P3.10 million or equivalent to 10.10%
lower as compared to 2015 reported net loss of 230,70 million. The significant changes were mainly due
to the following:

+ Outside services decreased from P2.09 million in 2015 to ®1.09 million in 2016, B1.00 million or
equivalent to 47.85% decrease primarily due to the payment of appraisal fee for the appraisal on
the properties of the Company in 2015,

+ Taxes and licenses decreased from P1.57 million in 2015 to P0.65 million in 2016, 57.96% in due
to payment of real property tax.

e Rent decreased by P0.98 million or equivalent to 78.40% due to termination of rental contract for
office space used in 2015.

= Other expenses decreased by P1.15 million due to last year's loss on litigation on the “China
Banking Corparation vs. Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank (now Prime Media
Holdings, Inc.}", under Civil Case No. 95-72847, RTC Manila, Branch 17.
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Key Performance Indicators

2016 2017 2018 |
Return on Asset (%) 0.21% (0.27%) | (D.36%)
Return on Equity (%) 1 (0.03%) 0.28% 0.19%
S S

1/ Return on assets (ROA) was computed based an the ratio of net income/ (net loss) to average assets.
2/ Return on equity (ROE) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ {net loss) to average
eguity.

Brief Description of the General Nature and Scope of the Business

The Company was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission
({S5EC) on 6 February 1963,

On 1 October 2003, the SEC approved the amendment of the Company's articles of incarporation,
changing its primary purpose from a development bank to a holding company and to hold investments
in the media industry. On March 4, 2013, the SEC approved the extension of the Company's corporate
life for another 50 years.

On % July 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”) approved the public listing of the
Company's shares of stock. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, 663,713,458 Company shares are publicly
listed.

On 12 September 2002, the Company’'s assets and liabilities arising from its development hank
operations were transferred to and assumed by Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. (BDO) and Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC) under a Memorandum of Agreement {MOA), As at December 31,
2016 and 2015, the Company has liabilities arising from the MOA which pertain mainly to the estimated
transfer taxes and registration fees related to the transfer of assets to BDO/PDIC and other related
liabilities {see Note 9).

As at December 31, 2015, the Company’s shareholders are RYM Business Management Corp. (RYM ar
Parent Company} (43%), Metro Tagaytay Land Company, Inc. (MTLCI) {31%) and Neo Oracle Holdings,
Inc. (NOHI) (13%). In 2016, RYM acquired the common stock owned by MTLCI and NOHI but disposed of
21% of its ownership shares. As at December 31, 2016, RYM effectively owns 66% of the Company's
commaon stock.

The financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on April 10, 2017,

Status of Operations

The Company is still exploring new business matters, |ts current activities comprise mainly of
transferring assets related to its development bank operation to BDO and FDIC. Thus, the Company
has continued to incur losses resulting to a capital deficiency of P140.72 million and P114.11 million
as at
31 December 2018 and 2017, respectively. The stockhalders, however, have continued to provide the
necessary financial support to sustain Company operations, The stockholders converted their preferred
stock of P34.2 million into common stock in 2016 and converted their advances of Pe0D.5 million to
additional capital in 2014 and infused capital aggregating R179.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce
the capital deficiency. The Company is also considering implementing a quasi-reorganization to reduce
the capital deficiency,

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Nothing to disclose,
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Business Transactions with Related Parties

The Company as of 31 December 2018 and 2017 summary of related party transactions are as follows:

Parent Company and Other Related Party

Nature of Amaunt of Transaction Outstanding Balance
Transaction 2018 2017 2018 2017
Receivables
Loans Receivables
Entity under common
control Loan R26,000,000 B- B26,000,000 F
Interast
income 433,334 - 431,500 -

Rent Receivables
Entity under common
control Rent income 828,000 - 809,518

R27,241,018 B
Due from related parties
Entity under common
contral Advances RE,500,000 B12,300,000 B7,940,000 P6,300,000
Parent Company Advances - 20,000,000 - 6,120,000

R7,940,000 F12,420,000

Due to a related party

Parent Company Advances R20,000,000 P 213,880,000 -
Nontrade payable

Parent Company Management fee B- R23,052,784 R- P-
Employees

As of 31 December 2018, the Company has no regular employees,

Plan of Operation

The Company has no significant operational activity since its primary purpose was changed from a
development bank to a holding company in December 2002 other than those described in [tem 1 above,
There are no known trends, events or material commitments that are expected to have a material
favorable or unfavorable impact on the financial condition or on income from continuing operations.
The Company also signed subscription agreements with its major stockholders for a total proceeds of
P179 million, of which #70 million was received in April 2013 and the balance of B109 million was
collected in May and June 2014. This further brought down the capital deficit and is the major source
of funding for the expenses related to the transfer of the remaining assets to PDIC and BSP. Aside
from the transfer of assets to PDIC and BSP, the Company continues to pursue the clean-up of its books
and the settlement of its remaining obligations to pave the way for possible additional capital infusion
from third party investors.

On 17 July 2019, RYM, the principal stockholders of the Company entered into an agreement with a
group of investors {“Investors”) wherein the Investors will infuse investment properties into the
Company in exchange for shares (“Investment™}. The Investment is subject to compliance with
conditions precedents and approvals as discussed above. The Company was informed by the Investors
that it is proposed that the Company be used as the vehicle to raise new funds for the proposed project
for a smart-farming agricultural area, smart-city commercial and/or mixed-use developments in the
Province of Rizal with the possible integration of a mass transport hub to decongest Metre Manila
traffic.

. Status of Operations

The Company has a capital deficiency of P143.27 million and P140.72 million as at September 30,
2019 and 31 December 2018, respectively. In April 2046, 34.19 million shares were converted to 1.37
million common shares at a rate of 25:1, which resulted to a decreased in preferred stock by P34.19
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million and increase in common  stock by 1.37 million, and increase in additional paid capital in
excess of par by P32.82 million.

The Company is pursuing discussions with third party investors for additional capital. Please see
discussions under item VIIl (Plan of Operation)

X. Dividends

The Company has not declared dividend for the years 2018, 2017, and 2016. There are no restrictions
that limits the payment of dividends on common shares.

Xl. Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of operations, the Company is named a defendant in various legal actions, but it is
the opinion of Management, that the ultimate Uability, if any, from these cases will not seriously affect
the Company.

Management Report for the period September 30, 2019

The unaudited Financial Statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (“Company™) as at 30 September 2019
(with comparative audited Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2018), and for the three
months and nine months ended 30 September 2018 is in compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles and there were no changes made in accounting policies and methads of computation in the
preparation of the interim financial statements,

Summary of statements of financial position as at 30 September 2019 and 31 December 1, 2ME;

September 30, December 31, 2018

2019 (Audited) Increase (decrease)
{Unaudited)
Amount Percentage
(P'000) {P'000) (P'000)
Current assets P42,079 P44, 822 (F2,743) (6.12%)
Honcurrent assets 1,501 1,758 {257) (14.62%)
Total Assets P43, 580 P46 580 {P3,000) {6.44%)
Current Liabilities P186,848 P187,303 {P455) {0.24%)
Moncurrent Liability = == = =
186,848 187,303 (455) (0.24%)
Capital Deficiency (143,268) (140,723} {2,345) 1.81%
Total Liabilities and Capital Deficiency P43,580 P4, 580 {®3,000) (6. 44%)
summary of unaudited statements of comprehensive income for the three months and nine months
period ended 30 September 2019 and 2018:;
For three months ended For nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2019 2018 2019 28
{(P'000) {F000) {(F’000) {®'000)
Revenues {P45) P528 P872 1,129
Expenses {693) {49,833) {3,416) (53,263)
Loss before tax (738) (49,305) (2,544) (52,134)
Frovision for income tax i - - =
Total comprehensive loss (P738) {P49,305) (P2,544) (P52,134)

Summary of unaudited statements of cash flows for the three months and nine months period ended
30 September 2019 and 2018.

For three months ended  For nine months ended

September 30, September 30,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(P'000) (B 000) {P’000) (P 000)
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Cash provided by {used in) operating activities (P525) (P48,044)  (P3,302)  (P29,068)

Eﬂf‘h provided by investing activities 69 876 69,876
Increase {decrease) in cash {525) 21,832 (3,302 40,808
Cash at beginning of period 2,826 20,696 5,603 1,720
Cash at end of period : F2,301 P42 518 P2,301 P42,528

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

The Company has not been actively operating other than the activities connected with the transfer of the
Company’s remaining assets to the Philippine Depositary Insurance Corporation (PDIC) and the Bangkao
sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The Company also continues to pursue the cleanup of its books and the
settlement of its remaining obligations to pave the way for possible additional capital infusion from third
party investors.

FINAMCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Nine months ended 30 September 2019 compared with nine meonths ended 30 September 2018

Results of operation for the nine months ended 30 September 2019 and 2018 were net loss of
P2.54 million and P52.13 million, respectively. As compared with the same period last year, net loss for
the current period declined by P49.59 million, which represent an improvement of 95%.

Significant changes in the income statement accounts for the nine months ended 30 September 2019 versus
the same period last year are as follows:

Income

The Company’s income for the current period in the amount of P0.87 million has dropped by
P0.26 million compared with same period last year. The decrease in the Company's rental income is
primarily due to termination of its lease contract with a third party on its property located in Mandaluyong
City, mid last year. Lower collection as with regards to the recovery of accounts previously written off,
also contributed to the decline in income.

Expenses

Total expenses during the period amounted to P3.42 million, which is lower by P49.85 million compared
with same period last year, This represents a decrease of 94% compared with same period last vear, The
movement in expenses are attributable to the following:

a. During the last quarter of previous year, the Company sold its Legazpi property to Pacific Mall
Corporation, which sale resulted to a loss of P24.% million, representing the difference between the
selling price and fair market value of the property, No similar transaction has occurred during the
current year,

b. Professional fees decreased by P0.47 million compared with same period last year. Factors that resulted
ta the decline in this account are decreased in payments of various legal fees. In 2018, the Company
incurred legal fees amounting to P0.57 million, in relation to its Cahirup case, which resulted to high
legal fees last year, as compared this year.

€. Taxes and licenses for the period amounting to #0.43 million is lower by P0.80 million compared with
same period last year. The Company paid real property taxes last year for its property located in Legazpi
totalling P0.77 million, which caused last year's expense to be significantly higher compared with the
current period.

d. Rent expense for the period amounting to P0.07 million is lower by ®2.55 million compared with the
same period last year, Last year, the Company made a payment of its association dues (including those
in arrears) to Landco Business Park, concerning the Legazpi property, which resulted to high rent
expense in prior year.

e. The significant drop in other expenses from P21.11 million last year to #0.82 million this year, is mainly
due to payment of compromise settlement last year to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas involving a litigation,

Three months ended 30 September 2019 compared with three months ended 30 September 2018

2019 58T Form 20415 [PRIM)

]
A



Results of operation for the three months ended 30 September 30, 2019 and 2018 were net loss of
P0.74 million and P49.31 million, respectively. As compared with the same period last year, net loss for
the current period declined by P48.57 million, which represent an improvement of 99%,

significant changes in the income statement accounts for the three months ended 30 September 2019
versus the same period last year are as follows:

Income

The decrease in the Company’s rental income is primarily due to termination of its lease contract with a
third party on its property located in Mandaluyong City, mid last year. Lower collection with regards to
the recovery of accounts previously written off, also contributed to the decline in income.

Expenses

Total expenses during the period amounted to P0.69 million, which is lower by P49.14 million compared
with same period last year. This represents a decrease of 99% compared with same perind last year. The
movement in expenses are attributable to the following:

a. During the last quarter of previous year, the Company sold its Legazpi property to Pacific Mall
Corporation, which sale resulted to a loss of 24.9 million, representing the difference between the
selling price and fair market value of the property, Mo similar transaction has occurred during the
current year,

b. Taxes and licenses dropped by P0.84 million compared with same period last year. The Company paid
real property taxes last year far its property located in Legazpi totalling P0.77 million, which caused
last year’'s expense to be significantly higher compared with the current period.

. Rent expense for the period amounting to P0.02 million is lower by P2.54 million compared with the
same period last year. Last year, the Company made a payment of its association dues (including those
in arrears) to Landco Business Park, concerning the Legazpi property, which resulted to high rent
expense in prior year.

d. The significant drop in other expenses from 20.99 million last year to £0.10 million this year, is mainly
due to payment of compromise settlement last year to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas involving a litigation.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assets of the Company as of 30 September 2019 is P43.58 million. The amount is lower by
P3.0 million compared to the balance as of 31 December 2018, which represents a decline of 6% The
change in Total Assets is attributed to the following:

a. Cash
Cash decreased by P3.30 million or 59%. The decrease is mainly attributable to payments of the
Company’s operating expenses and accruals, Advances to a related party totalling £0.87 million
during the period also contributed to the decline in cash balance.

b.  Due from related parties
During the period, the Company advanced a total of Q.87 million to a related party. Further,
the Company received P0.60 million from advances made to MMDC,

c. Other current assets
The movernent in this account is mainly due to recognition of Input VAT from purchases of goods
and/or services during the period totaling 0.32 million. This is slightly offset by the decrease in
prepaid insurance due to amortization.

d. Eguipment
Decrease in equipment of P0.26 million is attributed to the depreciation recognized for the period.
Mo addition and/or disposal was made during the period.

e. Accrued expenses and other current lighilities
The account decreased by P0.46 million or 26% during the period, due to payment of accrued legal
fees, rental, and other services,

f.  Capital deficiency
2019 SEC Fomm 20415 (FRIM| 26



The increase in capital deficiency of P2.54 million is mainly due to net loss during the period.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended 30 September 2019 and 2018 amounts ta
#3.30 million and #29.07 million, respectively. Decrease in cash for the current period is the net result of
the following significant transactions:

= Payment of accruals and operating expenses during the period.
* Advances made to a related party totaling P0.87 million.
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HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL AMALYSIS

30 September

2019 31 December 2018 _ Increase (Decrease)
{Unaudited) {Audited) Amount Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash #2,301,484 P3,602,963  (P3,301,479)  (58.92%)
Receivables 27,483,567 27,396,444 87,123 0.32%
Due from related parties 8,167,154 7,940,000 227,154 2.86%
Other current assets 4,127,131 3,882,788 144 343 6.29%
Taotal Current Assets 42,079,336 44,822,195 (P2,742 B59)  (6.12%)
Noncurrent Assets
Equity securities designated as fair value through
other comprehensive income {FVOCI) 500,000 500,000 - 0,00%
Equipment 1,000,617 1,258,193 (257,576)  (20.47%)
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,500,617 1,758,193 {257,576) (14.65%)
P43,579,953 P46,580,388  (P3,000,435) {6.44%)
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL DEFICIENCY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities P172,967,533 #173,423,080 (P455,547) {0.263%)
Due to a related party 13,880,000 13,880,000 - 0.00%
Total Current Liabilities 186,847,533 187,303,080 (435,547}  (0.24%)
Capital Deficiency
Capital stock 714,664,876 714,664,876 - 0.00%
Deficit (B58,232,456) (B55,687,568) (2,544,888 0, 30%
Cumulative unrealized valuation gain on equity
securities designated as FYOC! 300,000 300,000 - 0.00%
Total Capital Deficiency (143,267,580) (140,722,692) (2,544 B88) 1.81%
P43,579,953 P46,580,388  (P3,000,435) (6.44%)

Corporate Governance

The Company adopted a manual on corporate governance, which details the standards by which it conducts
sound corporate governance consistent with relevant laws and regulations.

Ultimate responsibility for the Company's adherence to its manual rests with its Board of Directors, and
through three committees that are to be charged with oversight functions on specific areas of the
Company’s activities. The Audit Committee is charged with internal audit oversight over all of the
Company’s transactions. The Nomination Committee is charged with ensuring that those admitted as
members of the Company's Board of Directors are qualified, as well as ensuring fair representation of
independent directors in the Company’s Board of Directors. Finally, the Compensation and Remuneration
Committee is tasked to ensure that fair compensation practices are adhered throughout the organization.

In view however, of its current condition, the Company is not actively conducting business. Despite said
absence of actual business operations, the Company is currently undersoing internal reorganization and is
in the process of evaluating its compliance with its reporting aobligations as a public company. As such, it
is not in a position to fully comply with the provisions of the manual on corporate governance. There are
no regular meetings conducted by the Committees. There is also no Compensation Committee, in view of
the fact that the Company’s directors and officers currently do not recefve compensation for serving as
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such. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company continues to endeavor towards internally reorganizing
and evaluating its compliances to the rules applicable to it as a public company. Despite the status of the
business aperations of the Company, it has submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission current
reports (SEC Form 17-C) and quarterly (SEC Form 17-Q) and annual (SEC Farm 17-4) reports to update the
investing public of its financial and operational condition.

Market Information

The closing market price of the Company’s comman stock in the Philippine Stock Exchange on 31 October
2019 is PhP 1.46.

The high and low prices for each quarter of 2017, 2018 and 2019 are provided below:

Q1 (2017) 1.01 1.26
QZ {2017) 0.76 1.17
Q3 (2017) 0.92 1.65
Q4 (2017) 1.02 1.98
Q1 {2018) 1.08 1.68
Q2{2018) 1.09 1.62
Q3 (2018) 1.15 1.66
Q4 {2018) 1.10 1.26
Q1 (2019) 1.12 1.36
Q2 (2019) 1.03 1.40
Q3 (201%9) 1.21 1.98

The commoan shares of the Company is held by 1,594 shareholders of cormmon shares and 267 shareholders of
preferred shares,

The list of the top 20 stockholders of the Company as of 31 October 2019 is shown below

1. PCD Mominee Corporation (Filipino) 668,574,617 05.47%
2. First Producers Holdings Corp. FAO Ray Burton 6,175,789 (K. 88%
3. First Producers Holdings Corp. FAQ Producers Properties Inc. 4,903,852 00.70%
4, PCD Nominee Corporation {Foreign) 4,176,036 00, 60%
5. Ray Burton Development Corp. 3,213,293 00.46%
6. Producers Properties, Inc. 3,013,71 00.43%
7. Mercantile Investment Company Inc. 1,585,989 00.23%
8. Del Rosario, Albert ITF Anthony Salim 1,289,279 00, 18%
9, Yan, Lucio W, &/or Clara Yan 600,000 00.09%,
10. Vargas, Joel B. 534,876 00.08%
11. 5o, Merlene, &/or 50 Peng Kee 239,000 00.03%
12, Uy, Maria T. 211,200 00.03%
13, Go, Jr., Jose ¥u 210,000 00.03%
14, Go, Jovy Lim 150,000 00.02%
15. Que Lu Kiong 150,000 00.02%
16. Abad, Rufino H. 142,011 00.02%
17. Tan, Luciano H. 139,600 00.02%
18. Mavalta, Leanarda 132,254 00.02%
19, Dizon, Lamberto C., &/or Erlinda ¥V, Dizon 127,860 00.02%
20, Abacus Securities Corp, 127 B&0 00.02%

Other than the conversion of preferred shares to cammon shares as stated in page 13, the Company has no
recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities or recent issuance of securities constituting an exempt
transaction.

F001% 5EC Forrm 2045 [PEIRA) 15



UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF THE STOCKHOLDER(S), THE CORPORATION UNDERTAKES T FURMISH SAID
STOCKHOLDER(S) WITH A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A, FREE OF CHARGE, EXCEPT FOR THE EXHIBIT ATTACHED
THERETO, WHICH SHALL BE CHARGED AT A COST. ANY WRITTEM REQUEST FOR A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A
SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO Atty. Maila Lourdes G. De Castro at /o Marcventures, 47 Floor Citibank Center
Bldg., Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

SIGHATURE PAGE

After reasonable inguiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set forth
in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on the 15 day of

MNovember 2019,

PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

Ve dr——

MAILA LOURDES G. DE CASTRO
Corporate Secretary
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
MAKATI CITY )} 5.5.

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I, MAILA LOURDES G. DE CASTRO, of legal age, Filipino, with office address at 4t
Floor, Citibank Center, Paseo de Roxas Ave., Makati City, being the duly elected and qualified
Corporate Secretary of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. (the “Corporation”), a corporation
duly organized and existing under the laws of the Philippines with principal office address at
16t Floor, Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City, hereby certify that as of the date of
this Certification, none of the directors or officers of the Corporation are employed by or
connected with any government agencies or its instrumentalitics.

PET 16201
IN WITNESS WHEREOFT, 1 have hereunto set my hand this day of

2019at___ MAKATIC!ITY

MAILA LOURDES G. DE CASTRO
Corporate Secretary

OCT 16 2078
JBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this dayof _ 2015 at
MAKAT)CJff/POCRIEED AND e
* ___, affiant exhibited to me her Driver's License No, N02-95-205472 expiring on 18
October 2021,

2 —_

Doc. No. E ij!g? :
Page No. _ : TBENT.
Book Na, QME . ;_‘Al/? M. RAMIREZ

_'-'T-'-"ﬂ'f EUBLIC
Series of 2019, T

RT3 200 CY 2014
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

L, Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr., Filipino, of legal age and a resident of No, 167 Libra Street,
Cinco Hermanos Subdivision, Marikina City, after having been duly sworn to 1n accordance

with law, do hereby declare that:

I I am a nominee for Independent Director of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS,
INC. for its Annual Stockholders” Meeting on 12 December 2019,

2. I am affihated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government Owned and Controlled Corporations):

[COMPANY/ORGANIZATION || POSITION/RELATIONSHIP || PERIGD OF
e e e e A TR S e S i Bz S@R‘!IGE_.
Aruepo Bile and Associates Partner Since 2001
Life Savings Bank Independent Director Since 2019
Lorenzana Food Corporation Manager for Administration and Since 2012
Legal Services
AV, Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Corporale Secretary and/or Legal | Since 2011
Insurance Broker, Inc. Consultant
East Offices Realty and Corporate Secretary and/or Legal | Since 2012
Management Co., Inc. Consuliant
National Steel Corporation Corporate Secretary and/or Legal | Since 2006
Consultant
PET Plans, Inc. Assistant Rehabilitation Receiver simee 2006
Advent Capital and Finance Assistant Liquidator Since 2001
Corporation
Bacnotan Steel Industries, Inc, Assistant Liguidator Since 2003
East Asia Capital Corporation Assistant Liguidator Since 2009 |
Reynolds Philippines Corporation | Assistant Liquidator Since 2005
3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an

Independent Director of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Secunities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other Securities
and Ixchange Commission {SEC) 1ssuances.

4, Other than as disclosed in Item no. 2 above, | am not in any way related to any
director, officer and/or substantial sharcholder of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. and ifs
subsidiaries and affiliates.

5. To the best of my knowledge, T am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding,

b. I shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations, the Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

7. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
of any changes in the abovementioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence,
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, Francisco L. Layug, I11, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 12 F. Bernabe Si.,
Merville Park Subdivision, Paranaque City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance
with law do hereby declare that:

1. T am a nominee for Independent Director of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(“PRIM"} for its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on 12 December 2019,

2. lam affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government
Owned and Controlled Corporations):

NY/OR TION | POSITION/RELATIONSHIP | PERIOD OF SERVICE |
Rntar}r C]ub r:-f Pd&-av President-Elect 2017-2018
University of the Philippines President 2010-2011
Electronics and Electrical
Engineering Alummi Association,
Inc. (UPEEEAAL
Alay-Lakad Foundation | Vice President 2009-2010

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Prime Media Holdings, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other
SEC issuances.

4. Other than as disclosed in ltem 2 above, [ am not in any way related to any
director /officer/substantial shareholder of Prime Media Hoeldings, Inc. and its
subsidiaries and affiliates,

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding,

6. Ishall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SEC issuances.

~1

I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. of any
changes in the abovementioned information within five (5) days from its
occurrence,
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statemerts including the schedules attached
therein for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 201 7, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or BILOT,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or'to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible in overseeing the Company’s financial
Teporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, has audited the financial statements of
the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in s report to
the stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation
upan completion of such audir,

argdah o G

BERNADETH A, LIM,,
Vice President

.

ROLAXNDO 8, SANTOS
Treasurer

APR

Signed this d;}r%fzmg
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc.

1&th Floor, Citibank Tawer

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (the Comparny),
a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., which comprise the statements of financial position as
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes
in equity and statements of cash flows for the three years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2018,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our cginion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
three years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).

Basfs far Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards aon Auditing (PSAL  Our
responsibilities under those standards are further describied in the Auditors’ Respensibilities far the
Audit of the Financiol Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which indicates that the Company is still
exploring for a new busifess. its current activitios comprise mainly of transferring assets related to its
previous development bank operation to BDO and PDIC. Thus, the Company has continued to incur
losses resulting in a capital deficiency of 140.7 million and #114.1 million as at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively. These events indicate thas a material uncertainty exists-that may cast significant
daubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a Boing concern, The actions being taken by the
Company are also discussed in Note 1. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements as at and for the vear ended December 31, 2018. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate apinion on theze matters,

stockholders’ Commitment to Support the Company

The Company relies on its stockholders ta sustain its operations and settle its liabilities, The ahility of
the Company to continue as a Eving concern depends primarily on the financial capacity and
comimitment of the stockholders, Hence, this is of significance to our audit, We obtained letter of
financial support from the Parent Company and reviewed management’s disclosures on actions being
taken by the stockholders and underlying documents. Further disclosures are included in Note 1 to the
financial statements.

Estimated Liabilities

As discussed in Mote 1, the Company has estimated liabilities primarily refated to its previous
development banking operations. This matter is of significance to our audit because it involves the use
of estimates. We have reviewed the reasonableness of management's estimates, Further disclosures arg
included in Note 10,

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information camprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A {Annual Report] and
Annual Report distributed to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2018, but does not inclyde
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The SEC Form 20-1S » SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report distributed to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2018 are expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors’ réport,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing se, consider whether the other
infarmation is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audits or atherwise agpears to be materially misstatad,

Responsibilities of Management and Those € harged with Governonce for the Financial Statemerits

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financiz! statements in a_ﬁco'n_:'r_an-:e with PFRS, and
for such Internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial.
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. :

In preparing the financlal statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the :

going concern basis of accounting unless management either Intends to liquidate the Company or to r:i;.j"x-':ﬁ
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. L™
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 85 a whole
are free from material misstatement, whezher due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when It exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and are considerad material if, individually or In the
aggregate, these could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of bsers taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercisa professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dus to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiz| uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. |f we conclude that a material uneertainty exists, we are required to draw sttention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditars’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. i :

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among c_lfhe-r matters, the p[annéﬂ ;

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intarnzl control that we identify during our audits. :
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those myatters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describé these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Belinda B, Fernando,

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

]
B s B ﬁr M
BELINDA B. FERNANDO

Partner
CPA Certlficate Mo, 81207
Tax |dentitication Mo, 102-086-538-000
BOA Accraditation No. 4782; Valid until August 1%, 2021
SEC Accreditatian Ne, 1022-AR-2 Groug A
Valid until March 15, 2020
BIR Accreditation No, 08-005144-004-2017
Walld until January 13, 2020
PTR Mo, 7334334
Issued lanuary 3, 2029, Makati City

April 12, 2019
Makati City, Metre Manila
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December 31
Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 4 B5,602,963 #1,720,231
Receivables 5 27,396,444 2,453,932
Due from related parties 14 7,940,000 12,420,000
Other current assets 6 3,882,788 208,359
Total Current Assets 44,822,195 16,802,527
Moncurrent Assets
Investment properties F - 69,876,000
Equity securities designated as falr value through other
comprehensive income (FVYOCH) 8 500,000 300,000
Equipment g 1,258,193 1,538,190
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,758,193 71,714,190
R46,580,388 PB8,516,712
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL DEFICIENCY
Current Liahilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 10 F173,423,080 B193,071,645
Due to a related party 14 13,880,000 -
Total Current Liabilities 187,303,080 193,071,645
Noncurrent Liahility
Deferred tax liability 13 - 9,555,5&9_
Total Liabilities 187,302,080 202,628 445
Capital Deficiency
Capital stock 11 714,664,876 714,664,876
Additional paid-in capital 11 - 2,114,921 869
Deficit (855,687,568)  (2,943,798,478)
Cumulative unrealized valuation gain on equity securities
designated as FYOC! 8 300,000 100,000

Tortal Capital Deficiency

(140,722,692) {114,111,733)

R46,580,388° R88,516,712

See occompanying Notes to Financial Statements,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017 2016
INCOME
Rental 12 1,125,857 B279,360 279,360
Interest income 4 446,732 13,474 44,054
Recovery of sccounts written-off 5 247,202 157,328 745,211
Gain on fair value changes of investment
___ properties i - 1,741,000 1,901,000
1,819,791 2,201,162 2,973,625
EXPENSES
Loss on sale of investment properties 7 24,896 294 - -
Professional fees 2,595,114 1,799,004 2,907,294
Association dues 2,553,793 - -
Cutside services 1,456,005 1,316,410 1,093,483
Taxes and licanses 1,453,072 455 975 £54,831
Representatian 912,087 12,500 -
Depreciation 9 334,372 96,010 17,160
Rent 12 125,488 186,699 272,783
Management fee 14 - 23,092,784 23,092,784
Pravision for impairment losses 5 - 2,128,335 -
Salaries and allowance - = 130,998
Others 1,448,071 1,015,854 484,302
35,774 296 30,105,614 28,653,740
LOS5 BEFORE INCOME TAX (33,954,505} {27,904,452) [25,680,115)
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM} INCOME TAX 13
Current 175,322 8,934 20,571
Deferred {9,556,800) 522,300 570,300
{9,381,478) 531,234 590,871
NET LOSS {24,573,027) (28,435 686} {26,270,985})
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)
ftem that will not be reclassified ta profit or loss
Unrealized valuation gain on equity securities
designated as FvQCl 8 200,000 - -
ftem thot will be reclassified ta profit or loss
Unrealized valuation gain (loss) on available- _
for-sale financial assets 3 - 60,000 ﬂmfﬂﬂn}_
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (R24,373,027) [PEE,E?E,EBE} ﬂFZG;E-EU,EEE} e
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share 16 {r0.04) {R0.04) (RO.04) 7

See occomponying Notes to Finonciol Statements,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

o MNote 2018 2017 M8

CAPITAL STOCK 11

Common stock - B1 par value

Balance at beginning of year R700,298,616 B700,298,615 RE98,930,506

Conversion of preferred to commaon stock - - 1,367,710

Balance at end of year 700,298,616 700,298 616 700,293,616

Preferred stock - B1 par vilue

Balance at beginning of vear 14,366,260 14,366,260 48,559,000

Conversion of preferred to common stock - - {34,192,?40L

Balance at end of year 14,366,260 14,366,260 14,366,260

114,664,876 714,664,676 714,664,876

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL :

Balance at beginning of yaar 2,114 921 RGO 2,114,521,5369 2,082 096,839

Effect of equity restructuring 11 (2,114,921 869) - -

Conversion of preferred to common stock - - 32,825,030

Balance at end of year - 2,114,921 BEgy 2,114,921 869

DEFICIT

Balance at beginning of year (2,943,798,478) {2,515,362,792 (2,889,091,806)

Effect of equity restructuring 11 2,114,921.869 - -

Met |oss [2‘},5?3,32?} (28,435,686) {25,2?&,935}

Effect of initial application of PERS 9 5 {2,237 332) - -

Balance at end of year {855,687,568) (2,543,798,478) (2,9 15,362,792)

CUMULATIVE UNREALIZED VALUATION

GAIN DN EQUITY SECURITIES
DESIGMNATED AS Fvor) 3

Balance gt beginning of year 100,000 40,000 50,000

Unrealized valuation gain {loss) 200,000 60,000 {10,000)

Balance atend of year 300,000 100,000 40,000
(P140,722,692)  (p114.1% 1,733} (R85,736,047}

S£E grrompanying Notes to Finaneiagl § tatements,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

MWote 2018 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before incame tax {P33,954,505) (B27,504,452) {F25,680,115)
Adjustments for:
Loss on sale of investment properties 7 24,896,294 - -
Interest income 4 (446,732) {13,474} {44,054)
Depreciation 9 334372 96,010 17,160
Gain on falr value changes of investment
properties 7 - {1,741,000) (1,901,000)
Operating loss before working capital changes {9,170,571)  (29,562,916) {27,608,009)
Decrease {increase) in:
Receivables (27,180,444} 2,062,335 {132,400}
Due from related parties 4,480,000 27,580,000 {40,000,000)
Other current assets (3,674,429) 600,546 21,074
Decrease in accrued expenses and other current
liabilities (19,648,565) (83,237) (2,828,203
Net cash generated from {used for) operations (55,124,009} 590,728 (70,545,538)
Interest received 446,732 13,474 44,054
Income tax paid (175,322) (8,934) (20,571)
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities (54,922,595) 595,268 {70,523,055)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Froceeds from sale of investment properties 7 44,979,706 - -
Acnquisition of equipment 9 {54,375) {1,577,000) -
Net cash provided by [used in) investing activities 44,575 321 (1,577,000) -
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
increase in due to a related party 13,880,000 - ~ -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE] IN CASH 3,882,732 (981,732)  (70,523,055)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,720,231 2,701,963 73,225,018
CASH AT END OF YEAR B5,602,963 71 720,231 R2,701,963
See arcompanying Nates to Finandal Stotéments,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Phillppine
Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) on February 6, 1963. On October 1, 2003, the SEC
approved the amendment of the Company's articles of incorporation, changing its primary purpose
from a development bank to 2 holding company and to hold investments in the media industry.
On March 4, 2013, the SEC approved the extension of the Company’s corporate life for another
50 years,

On July 9, 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. approved the public listing of the Campany’s
shares of stock, As at Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017, there are 663,713,458 Company shares that are
publicly listed.

The Company is a subsidlary of RYM Business Management Corp. {RYM or the Parent Company), a
holding company registered and domiciled in the Philippines,

On September 12, 2002, the Company agreed to transfer assets and liabilities arising from its
development bank operations to Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. (BDD) and Philippine Deposit Insurance
Corporation (PDIC) under a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA). As at December 31, 2018 and
2017, the Company has liabilities arising from the MOA which pertain mainly to the estimated

* transfer taxes and registration fees related to the transfer of assets to BDO/PDIC and other related
liabilities (see Note 10).

The Company’s registered office and principal place of business is at 16th Floor, Citibank Tower,
8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City.

The financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years
ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board
of Directors (BOD) on April 12, 2019,

Status of Operations

The Company is still exploring for a new business. ts current activities comprise mainly of
transferring assets related to its previous development bank operations to BDO and PDIC. Thus, the
Company has continued to incur losses resulting in a capital deficiency of B140.7 million and
£114.1 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. RYM, the majority stockholder,
however, has centinued ta provide the necessary financial support to sustain the Cormipary's
operations. Certain stockholders converted their preferred stock of #34.2 million inte common
stock [n 2016, converted their advances of BE00.5 million to additional capital in 2014 and infused
capital aggregating B179.0 miillion in 2014 and 2013 ta reduce the capital deficiency,

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Company’s equity restruthrfng to reduce its defiejt by
applying its additional paid-in capital (APIC) armounting to B2,114.9 million [see Note 11),

i
&



2. Summ;w of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Fhilippine Financial Reparting
Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Councif and adopted by the
SEC, including SEC pronouncements, This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations from International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee,

Measurement Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the Company's functional
currency. All amounts represent absolute values except otherwise stated,

The financial statements have heen prepared on a historical cost basis, except for its investment
properties and equity securities designated as fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) which are carried at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets and fair value of the consideration received in exchange
for incurring liability.

Fair value is the price that would he received to sell an asset ar pald to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the transaction date. The Company uses
valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumnstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observahle inputs and minimizing the
use of uncbservable inputs.

The Company uses market abservable data to 4 possible extent when measuring the fair value of an
asset or a lability. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hizrarchy based on
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

s level 1- Quated ( unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or labilities.

= level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair yalye
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

¢ level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservahle,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels n the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (hased on the lowest level input that is slignificant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. -

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has deter'rr_:me-d rlaskes of assets and
fiabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierzrchy as explained above, T

Further information about the dssumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Notes 7, §
and 17.

o3t BV



Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adaption of the following new and amended PERS which the Company adopted effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PFRS 9, Finunciol Instruments — This standard replaced PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurermnent {and all the previous versions of PFRSS). It contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
impairment, hedge accounting, recognition and derecognition,

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to he subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the
classification by reference to the business model within which these are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics,

For financial liabilities, where the fair valye optian is taken, the amount of change in fair value of
a financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other tomprehensive income (OCI)
(rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an expected credit loss model based
on the concept of providing far expected losses at inception of a contract. Recognition of a
credit loss should no longer wait for there to be cbjective evidence of impairment.

For hedge accounting, PERS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financial risk exposures,

The derecogniticn pravisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39

As allowed under transitory provisions of PERS 9, the Company applied the requiremernts of
PFRS 8 retrospectively but opted not to restate the comparative information,

The Company has performed an assessment and has determined the impact of PFRS 9 on its
financial instruments,

Classification ond Measurement. On the date of initial application, January 1, 2018, the
Company made the following reclassifications:

(i} The Company’s cash, receivables and due from refated parties that were classified as loans
and receivables under PAS 39 are now classified as financial assets at amortized cost, These
financial assets are held to collect contractyual cash flows and give rise to cash flows
representing solely payments of principal and interest,

(i} The Company’s investment in a club share of Valley Golf & Country Club classified as
available-for-sale financial assets under PAS 39 will b measured at FYOC| under PFRS 9.
But unlike in PAS 39, the accumulated geins or losses presented In OCI related to these
investments will not be subsequently reclassified in profit or loss.



The Company has not designated any financial liabilities as at FVPL. There are no changes in
classification and measurement for the Group's financial habilities.

The application of the classification and measurement requiremerits under PFRS 9 did
not materfally affect the carrying amaunts of the Company's financial instruments as at
January 1, 2018,

Impoirment. The new impairment requirements resulted to additional provision for impairment
with respect to loans receivable and recelvables arising from the Company's rent income.
For these receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach in measuring the expected
credit losses. This approach does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognize an
allowance for impairment losses based on lifetime expected credit losses, This resulted in an
increase of the allowance for impairment losses with a correspending increase in deficit and
increase in unrecognized deferred tax assets by £2.2 million and B0.7 million, respectively, as at
January 1, 2018,

For other financial assets at amortized cost which mainly comprise of cash in banks and due
from related parties, the Company applies the general approach in measuring the expected
credit |osses, The new impairment requirements did not result in significant expectad credit
loss. The following are considered in the assessment:

Cash in banks are deposited with reputable counter party banks that possess good credit
ratings.

For related party transactions, the Company considered the availahle liguid assets of the related
parties.

* PFR5S 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers — The new standard replaces pas 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, and related interpretations. It establishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle based on a five-step model to be applied to
all contracts with customers, enhanced disclosures; and new or improved guidance (eg. the
point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for varigble considerations, costs of fulfiliing
and abtaining a contract, etc.).

= Amendment to PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 = The
amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: {a) identifying performance
obligations; (b) principal versus agent considerations; and (c) ficensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relief for modified tontracts and completed contracts.

= Amendments to PAS 40, investment Praperty - Transfers of Investment Property = The
amendments clarify that transfers to, or from, investment property {including assets under
construction and development) should be made when, and only when, there is evidence that a
change in use of a property has gccurred,

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any materal effect on the
financial statements of the Company except for PFRS 9. Additional disclosures will be included in
the financial statements, as applicable,
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New and Amended PFRS Issued Byt Mot Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2018
and have not been applied |n Preparing the financial statements are summarizad below,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 -

= PFR5 186, Leases — This standard repiaces PAS 17, Leases, and its related interpretations. The
most significant change introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will be brought
onto lessees’ statement of financial position under a single model {except leases of |ess than
12 months and leases of low-valye assets), eliminating the distinction between cperzting and
finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remaing largely unchanged and the distinction
between operating and finance lease is retained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS s not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company. Additional
disclosures will be included in the financial statements, as applicable.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the
statements of financial position when it becomes a party ta the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and
derecognition, as applicable is done using settlement date accounting.

fnitial Recognition. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fajr value, which is the fair valye
of the consideration given {in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The initial
measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair FVPL, includes transaction
cost.

“Day 1" Difference. Where the transaction price in a Hon-active marker is different from the fair
value of other observable current market: transactions in the same instrument or bazed on 2
valuation technigue whase variables include only data from ohservable market, the Company
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1" difference) in
profit or loss. [n cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Company deems the
transaction price as the best estimate of fajr vaiue and recognizes “Day 1” difference in profit or loss
when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction,
the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference.

Classification. The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following
categories: (a) financial assets at FypL, (b} financial assets at amortized cost, and (c} financial assets
at FWOCI. Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified as either financial liabilities at FypL or
other financial liabilities at amortized cost. The classification of a financial instrument largely
depends on the Company’s business model.

The Company does not have financial assets.and liabilities at FVPL and debt instruments mecasurad
at FVOCI,



Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. A financial gsset shall be measured at amaortized cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

* the financial asset is held within a business medel whose objective is to hold financial essets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at emortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cast is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
financial assets are derecognized and through amortization process. Financial assets at amortized
cost are Included under current assets if realizability or collectability is within 12 months after the
reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

Classified under this category are the Company’s cash, recejvables (excluding advances to officers,
employees and service providers} and due from related parties,

Equity Securities Designated os FVYOC) (Starting January 1, 2018). Equity securities which are not
held for trading may be frrevocably designated at initial recognition under the FVOCI category,

Financial assets at FVOCi are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. After initial
recognition, financial assets at FVOC] are measured at fair value with unrealized Eains or loszes
recognized in OCI and are included under “Other comprehensive income” account in the equity
section of the statements of financial position. These fair value changes are recogrized in equity and
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. On disposal of these equity securities,
any cumulative unrealized valuation gains will be reclassified to retained ea rnings.

Classified under this category is the Company’s investment in a club share of Valley Golf & Country
Club,

AFS Financial Assets {Prior te January 1, 2018). AFS financial assets are measured at fair value, The
changes in fair values are recognized in OC and accumulated in equity until the investment is sold,
collected, ar otherwise disposed of or until the investment is determined to be Impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity are included in profit or loss,

Financiol Liabifities at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liahilities st
amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having
an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to settfa the
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financkal asset for a fixed
number of its own equity instruments.

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective intérest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the Issue and fees that are anintegral part of the effective interest rate.

Classified under this category are the Company's accrued expenses and other current liabilities
(excluding statutory payables) and due to a related party,
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Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Company records an allowance for expected credit loss based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive. The difference is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's original
effective interest rate.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liahilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset {or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized by the Company when:

* the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired:

* the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

= the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either {3) has
transterred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has transferred control over
the asset,

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered |nto
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset fs recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset, Continuing fnvolverment that takes the form of 3
guarantee over the transferred asset, if any, is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum ameunt of consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Financiol Ligbilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled ar has expired. Where an existing financial |ia bility is replaced by ancther
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, sueh an exchange or modification Is treated as 3 derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount
Is recognized in profit or lass,

Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements of
financial position if, and anly if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on 3 net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultanecusly. This is not generally the case with master netting agreeimeants, and the
relsted assets and liabilities are presented gross In the statements of financial pasition,

Other Current Assets
This account mainly consists of creditable withholding taxes (CWT), orepayments and the excess of
input value-added tax (VAT) over output VAT,

CWT. CWT represents the amount withheld by the Company’s customers in relation to its income.
CWT can be utilized as payment far Income taxes provided that these are properly supported by
certificates of creditable tax withheld at source subject ta the rules on Phillppine incorme taxation,



CWT is stated at estimated net realizable value and s included as part of “Other current assets”
account in the statements of financial pasition,

Prepayments. Prepayments are expenses not yet incurred but paid in advance, Prepayments are
apportioned over the period covered by the rayment and chargad to the appropriate account in
profit or loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be rezlized for no more than
12 months after the reporting period are classified as current asset, Otherwise, these are classified
A% noncurrent asset,

VAT, Revenues, expensas and assets are recognired net of the amaount of VAT, except:

e where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services s not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the tay ic recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

* receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxation authority is included as part of “Other turrent
assets” account in the statements of financial position,

Investment Properties

Investment properties, accounted for under the fair value model, are property held either to sarn
rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of busingss, use in
the production or supply of goods or services ar for administrative pUrpnses,

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, The carrying.
amount includes the cost of replacing part of existing investment properties at the time that cast is
incurred and if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of
investment properties, Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market cenditions at the reporting date as determined by independent
dppraisers. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in profit or Joss in the year in which they arlse.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is 3 thange in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accaunting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Com pany accounts for such property in accordance with the palicy on
property and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanertly withdrawn from use and no further economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
Is recognized in profit ot loss in the year of retirement or disposal,

Equipment

Equipment 's stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any,

The initial cost of equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for itg Intended use,



Expenditures incurred after the equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs,
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year the costs are
incurred, In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized
as additional costs of equipment. The cost of replacing a companent of an item of cquipment is
recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the com ponent will
flow to the Company, and its cost can be measurad reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
companent is derecognized,

When parts of an itern of equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separzte
iterns {major components) of equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 5 years tor
computer and transportation equipment.

The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and methoad of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
fram iterms of equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value are remaved from the accounts. Any resulting gain or loss
is credited to or charged against current operations,

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that nonfinancial assets
rmay be impaired when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset-may not oe recoveraide, If any such indication exists and if the carrying amount axceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, nonfinancial assets are written down to its recoverable amount,
which Is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost to sell is
the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pretax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific ta the
asset. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An assessment [s made at each reporting date as to whether there s any indication that previously
recognized Impairment losses may no lenger exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable arount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount, However, that increased amount cannot exceed the ca rrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or |oss.

Equity
Capital Stock. Capital stock Is measured at par value for all shares issued.

APIC. Praceeds andfor Tair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are
recognized as APIC. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated

a5 deduction from APIC,
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Deficit. Deficit represents the cumulative balance of the Company's results of operations,

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from contract with customers s recognized when the performance abligation in the
cantract has been satisfied at a paint in time or over time.

The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting a5 a principal or as
an agent. The Company has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of its revenue sourée,

The following specific recognition eriteria must also be met befare revenue is recognized,
Rental. Rental income is recognized using the straight-line methad over the term of the lease,

Recovery of Accounts Written-off. Income from other sources is recognized when the amount is
actually received.

interest fncome. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yield on the asset,

Other Income. Other iricome is recognized when earned.

Expense Recopnition

Expenses constitute cost of administering the business. These costs are expensed upon receipt of
goods, utilization of services, or when the expense is incurred.

COperating Lease

Company os a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantialty all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a Lessar, Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the |eased asset and recognized
over the lease term on the same bases as rent income. Contingent rents are recognized as reverua
in the period in which they are earned.

Income Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate used to compute the amount is the one that
has been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financlal reporting purposes,
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for alf taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets aro
recognized for all deductible temparary differences, carryforward benefits of any unused tax credits
from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT} aver the regular corporate income tax
and any unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probeble that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not
recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction thas is
not a business corbination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nar taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax Is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as OC,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all ar part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferrad tax assets are reassessad at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate that has been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset; if a legally enfarceable Fight exists to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority,

Basic and Diluted Income (Loss)} per Share

The Company computes its basic income (loss) per share by dividing net income (loss) for the period
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
comman shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted income per share amounts are computed in the same manner, adjusted for the dilutive
effect of any potential common shares, There is no such information in 2018, 2017 and 2016
because the Company has no dilutive potential commen shares and s in a net loss position.

Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from

which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate o the
transactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only one segment
which is as a holding company.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party er exercise significant influence over the other party In making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to commen coritral or
common significant influence.
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A related party transaction is a transfer of resources; services or obligations between 3 reporting
entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged,

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to seftle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,

Provisions are made using the best estimates of the amaount required to settfe the obligation and
are discounted to present values using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. Changes in estimates are reflected in
profit or loss in the period they arise.

Continpencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote, Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are
disclosed when an inflow of econoimic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Past vear-end events that provide additional information about the Company's financial position at
the end of reporting period {adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Past
year-end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when
material.

Significant lJudgment, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires management ta exercise
judgment, make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reparted in the financial
slatements. The judgment and estimates used in the financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting date. While the
Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, sighificant differences in
the actual experience or significant changes In the assumptions may materially affect the estimated
amounts. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis.  Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the Period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods,

Judgment

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgment, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements,
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Assessing the Company's Ability to Continue as o Going Concern. The Company has incurred
continuous losses resulting in a capital deficiency of B140.7 million and R114.1 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Management believes this trend to continue for the
twelve months after reporting date. As discussed in Note 1, the stockholders provide continuing
necessary financial suppert to the Company while new business opportunities are not yet available,
Based on this, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basls of accounting,

Classifying Financial instruments. The Company exercises judgrments in classifying a financial
instrument on Initial recognition either as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions
of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial
instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of financial
position.

The Company classified its investment in a club share of Valley Golf & Country Club as financial
assets at FVOC! (see Note B).

Accounting for tease Commitments - Company as a Lessor, Management exercises judgment in
determining whether substantially all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the assets
held for lease are retained by the Company. Lease contracts where the Company retains
substentially all the risks and benefits incidental ta ownership of the leased item zre accounted for
as operating leases. Otherwise, these are considered as finance leases,

The Company, as a lessor, has eritered into property subleases where it has determined that it
retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership an those properties. As such, the lease
agreements are accounted for as operating leases,

Rent income amountad to R1.1 million in 2018 and £0.3 million in 2017 and 2016 {see Note 12).

Accounting for Lease Commitments - Company os g Lessee. The Company, as a lessee, has various
operating lease agreements. The Company has determined that the risks and benefits of ownership
related to the leased properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the lease is accounted for
as an operating lease,

Rent expense amounted to BO.1 million, P02 million and RO.3 millien in 2018, 2017 and 2018,
respectively (see Note 12).

Classifying Investment Properties and Owner-Occupled Properties. The Company determines
whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its judgment, the Company
considers whether the property generates cash flows |argely independent of the other assets held
by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the
property but also to the other assets used in the production or supply process.

The carrying amount of investment properties amounted to nil and R69.9 millian as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 7).

Evaluating Contingencies. The Company is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising from the
ordinary course of business. However, the Company's management and legal counsel belisye that
eventual liabilities under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material effect on the
Company's financial statements.
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Estimates and Assumptions

The ey estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimating Liabilities Refated to Previous Development Bank Operations. The estimated liabilities
related to previous development bank opetations of the Company [s based on the management’s
best estimate of the amount expected to be incurred to settle the abligation,

The liabilities arising from the MOA amounted to B151.1 million and B171.1 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 10),

Assessing Expected Credit Losses on Financiaf Assets at Amortized Cost. The Company applies the
simplified approach on its rent receivables and the general approach on all its other financial
asscts at amortized cost in measuring the expected credit loss. The Company estimates the
expected crédit loss on its rent receivabies using a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment,

The Company assessed that cash are deposited with reputable counterparty banks that possoss
good credit ratings, For related party transactions, and other receivables, the Company
considered the available liquid assets of the related parties and letter of guarantee fram the
stockholders,

The Company assesses that a financial asset is considered credit impaired when one or mare
events that have a detrimental effect on the estimated future cash flows of the asset have
occurred such as significant financial difficulty on the part of the franchisee or debtor’s cessation
of operations,

No impairment losses were recognized in 2018, 2017, and 2016,

The aggregate carrying amount of receivables {excluding advances to officers, employees and
service providers) and due from related Parties amounted to ®35.3 millien and R14.9 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Notes 5 and 14).

Determining Fair Value of Investment Properties. The Company engaged an independent appraiser
to determine the fair value of its investment properties. The fair value was determined using the
market data approach. Market data approach fnvalves the comparison of the land to those that are
more ar less located within the vicinity of the a prraised property and are subject of recent sales and
offerings. Adjustments were made to arrlve at the market value by considering the location, size,
shape, utility, desirability and time element.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuting fair value of investment properties
are discussed in Notes 7 and 17.

Gain on fair value changes which were recognized in the statements of comprehensive income
amounted to nil, B1.7 million and R1.9 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying
value of investment properties amounted ta nil and B69.9 million as at December 21, 2018 and
4017, respectively (see Note 7).
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Assessing Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets, The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an
Impairment review include the following:

= significant underperformance relative to expected histarical or projected future operating results;

* significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for averall business;
or

*  significant negative industry or economic tren ds,

No impairment losses werg recognized in 2018, 2017 snd 2016 except for impairment losses

recognized on advances to officers, employees and service providers amounting to £2.1 million in

2017 (see Mote 5),

The carrying amount of the Com pany's nonfinancial assets are as follows:

MNate 2018 2017

Other current assets & 3,882,788 B208,355

Equipment g 1,258,193 1,538,190
Advances to officers, employees and service

providers 5 32,200 -

Investment properties i - 6%,87E,000

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tax Assels. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amaunt to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilizad.

The Company’s unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to R36.5 million and #44.5 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Management believes that there will be no sufficient
future taxable profits against which these deferred tax asseis can be utilized (see Note 13).

Cash

This aceount consists of:

_ 2018 2017
Cash an hand R5,277 5 277
Cash in banks 5,597 686 1,714,954
85,602,963 £1,720,231
Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates,
The sources of interest income are 32 follows:
_ MNote 2018 2017 2016
Lozns receivable 14 R433,334 = B-
Cash in banks 13,398 13,474 44,054

B446,732 P13.474 B44,054
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5. Receivahles

This account consists of

MNote 2018 2017
Loans receivables:
Third parties RG62,277,740 BE62,277,740)
Related party 14 26,000,000 -
Advances to officers, employees and service
providers 2,158,535 2,126,335
Rent receivables; 12
Related party 14 809,518 -
Third parties 309,932 453,532
Interest receivable 14 431,500 -
Others 51,226 -
92,038,451 64,858,007
Less allowance for impairment losses 64,642,007 62,404,075
R27,356,444 B2,453,532

Loans recelvable fram third parties are relsted to the Company’s previous bank operatians and
receivable from a related party arising from loan agreements entered during the year.

Advances to officers, employees and service providers represent unliguidated, noninterest-bearing
advances for processing of the transfer of title of properties to PDIC and BDO. These are liquidated
upon the accomplishment of the purposes for which the advances were granted,

Movements in allowance for impairment losses are as follows:

2018
Advances to
officers,
Loans emplayees and
receivables  service providers  Rent recehables Total
Balance at beginning of year BG60,277,740 #2,126,335 = BG2,404,075
Effect of initizl application of PFES o 2,000,000 - 237,832 2,237,932
Balance at end of year RG2,277, 740 B2,126,335 F237.932 BG4,642,007
2017
Advances ta
officers,
employees and
Loans receivable  service providers Total
Balance at beginning of year BGL0,277,740 2 BG0, 277,740
Provislan - 2,126,335 2,12p,335
Balance at end of year 260,277,740 P2,126,335 B52 404,075

The Company recovered varicus accounts written-off in prior years amounting to R0.2 million,
£0.2 million and 0.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2018, respectively,
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Other Current Assets

This account consists af:

2018 2017
CwWT B3,298,203 R31416
Prepaymeants 515,929 75,352
Met input VAT 68,655 101,591
B E3,882,788 K208,359
Prepayments mainly pertain to prepaid insurance and taxes,
Investment Properties
hMovements in this account are as follows:
2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year F69,876,000 £58,135,000
Disgosal {69,876,000) -
Gain on fair value changes - 1,741,000
Balance at end of year R= FG9.876,000

This account represents parcels of commercial land located in Legazpl City, Athay, which are heid far
capital appreciation,

In 2018, the Company sold its investment propefties for a totzl corsideration of R45.0 million,
resulting to a loss oh sale of B24.9 million. In concluding the sale transaction, the management took
into aecount the cost of maintaining the property as well as other expenses and llabil'ties which the
Company needs to defray.

The fair values of the Investment properties as at December 31, 2017 are based on valuations
performed by accreditad independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment properties
were arrived at using the market data approach. Market Data Approach Involves the comparisen of
the land to those that are more or less located within the vicinity of the appraised property and are
subject of recent sales and offerings. Adjustments were made to arrive at the market value by
considering the location, size, shape, utility, desirability and time element. In this approach, the
valueg of the land was based on sales and listings of comparable property registered within the
vicinity. This requires the adjustments of com parable property by reducing reasonable comparative
sales and listings to a common denominator. This was done by adjusting the differences between
the subject property and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable. The properties
used as bases of comparison are situated within the vicinity of the subject property. The comparison
was premised on the factors of location, size, and shape of the lot, time element and others.

The significant unobservable inputs to fair valuation are a5 fallows:

Price per square meter B20,000-R22 857
Value adjustments -5% to 75%
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Price pef Square Meter: estimated value prevailing in the real estate market tepending on the
location, area, shape and time element.

Violue Adfustments: adjustrments are made to bring the comparative values in approximation to the
investment property taking inte account the location, size, architactural features and ete.

Sensitivity Anglysis. The factors considered in determining the fair value of the property are the
(a) location of the property with reference to quality neighborhood, (b} size, (g} physical
characteristics such as shape, topography and road frontage; and {d) time element. Significant
increase (decrease) in price per square meter would result In a significantly higher (lower) fair value
measurement. Significant increase {decrease) in value adjustments would result in a lower {higher)
fair value measurement.

Equity Securities Designated as FVOCI

The Company's equity securities designated as FVOC| consist of a club share in Valley Golf &
Country Club. The fair value of the club share is determined by reference to published price
quotations in an active market,

Muovements in this account are as follows:

2018 2017
Cost R200,000 200,000
Unrealized gain on fair value changes '
Balance at beginning of year 100,000 40,000
Fair value change 200,000 60,000
Balance at end of year 300,000 100,000
R500,000 E300,000
9. Equipment
Movemenss in this account are as follgws:
2018
Computer  Transportation
Equipment Eqguipmant Total
Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year RE5,800 R1,577.000 1,662,800
Additions - 54,375 54,375
Balance at end of year B5,B00 1,631,375 1,717,175
Eum ulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 45,760 78,850 124,610
Depraciation 17,160 317,212 333,372
Balance at end of year 62,920 396,062 458,982
Carrying Amount 22,880 1,235,313 1,258,183
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2017
Computer  Transportation
Equipment Equipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of vear 885,800 B BA25, 800
Additions - 1,577,000 1,577,000
Balance at end of year 85,800 1,577,000 1,662,800
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 28,600 - 28,600
Depreciation 17,160 78,850 95,010
Balance at end of year 45,760 78,850 124,610
Carrying Amount P40,040 P1,458,150 F1,538,190

On February 8, 2018, the Company entered into an operating lease agreement with Marcventures.
Mining and Developrnent Corporation (MMDC), a related party under common control, for the lease
of the transportation equipment until October 7, 2019 {see Note 14).

Rent income from the lease of transportation equipment amounted to BL.0 million in 2018,

10.

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Liabilities arising from the MOA R151,104,972  g171,104,972
Dividends payable 10,985,443 10,985,443
Rental deposits 5,972,642 5,572 642
Accried expenses 2,117,206 1,763,355
Statutory payables 2,607 11,073
Others 3,240,210 3,234,159

P173,423,080  P193,071,645

Liabilities arising from the MDA pertain to the estimated transfer takes and registration fees related
to the transfer of assets from its previous development bank operations to BDO/PDIC and othar
related liabilities, primarily from unremitted collection of assighed receivables and sale of foreclosed
properties for the account of PDIC (see Note 1), This account also includes provision for probable
losses to cover estimated losses from claims. As allowed under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liobilities and Contingent Assets, certain infarmation is hot disclosed until final settlement as it
might prejudice the Company’s position on the matter.

Dividends payable pertains to the Company’'s dividend for cumulative, nonparticipating, nonvating,
redeemable and convertible preferred stock that were declared prior to the Company's incurrence
of deficit.

Rental deposits represent long-outstanding rental deposits that have not been claimed by the
Company's previous tenants,

Accrued expenses pertain to accrual of outside services, professional fees and associatlan dues,
among others. These are normally settled in the next financial year,
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Others Include statutory payables and refunds of tenants related to the Company's previous
operations, These are noninterest-bearing, unsecured and are normally settled in the next financial
YEar or upon demand.

1.

Equity

Capital Stock

The movement in this account are as follows:

. 2018 2017 2014
Wumber of Number of Murnbar of
Shargs Amount Shares Amount Sharag Amaint
Commeon stock - B1 par vaiue ==
Authorized 3.006,000,000 _P3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 R3.000,000,000  3,000,000,000  #3,000,000,000
Subscribag)
Baiance at baginning of yenr T, 298,616 700,298 516 700,298,626 00238616 0B, 530,908 EA8,530, 305
Comversion of preferred
16 comman stock - = - - 1,367,710 1,35?,?}[!_
Balance at end of year F00,208 616 PROD,298 616 J0i 298 615 FI00,758 616 T, 298, 616 B0, 258,616
Pecferred stock - R1 par value
Authorizes 2,000,000,000  R2,000,000,000  2.000,000,000 P2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000  #2,000,000,000
Issued ond putstonding:
Bzlance at beglnning of yaar 14,366,760 14,366,260 14,365,260 14,365,260 48,559,000 44,559,000
Conversion of preferred
ko comman stock - - - - [34,252 7400 (34,193, 740)
Ralance at und of year 14,366,260 14,355,260 14,356,260 14,366,260 14,355,260 14,365,260

713664876 F714,664.876 J14,664 876 R714,664,676 TI4,660,876  pyidgEadtn

The preferred stock has the following salient features:

a. Cumulative, nonparticipating, nenvoting, redeamable and convertible at the option of the
Company.

b. Cash dividend rate initially at 4.50% per annum based on par value, which shall be automatically
adjusted to 9.00% per annum upon full payment of the subscription price.

c. The Company may, st any time at its option, wholly or partially redeem the outstanding
preferred stock plus accrued dividends thereon. When such call for redemption is made, the
holders of the preferred stock may opt to convert the preferred stack ta common stock.

Cn October 10, 2001, the BOD approved an option to stackholders of preferred shares of extending
the maturity of shares for another five years for a 2% additicnal dividend on the 9% reguler
dividend.

Equity Restructu ring

As discussed in Note 1, on March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Company’s equity restructuring to
reduce its deficit by applying its APIC amounting to B2,114.9 million.
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12,

Leases

Operating Lease Commitments

* The Company entered into cancellable [ease agreements for a period ranging from one to
thirteen years renewable upan mutual agreement of the parties and subleased the properties

under the same tefims.

*  On February 8, 2018, the Company entered into an operating lease agreement with MMDC for

the lease of the transportation equipment unti| October 7, 2019 (see Note 9).

Rent income amounted to 1.1 million in 2018 and B0O.3 million in 2017 and 2016. Rent
receivable amounted to R1.1 millian and RO.5 million 25 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,

respectively [see Note 5).

Related rent expense amounted to B0.1 million, B0.2 million and B0.3 million in 2018, 2017 and

2016, respectively.

13,

Income Tax

The provision for current income tax represents MCIT in 2018, 2017 and 2018,

The reconciliation of provisien for income tax at the statutory income tax rate to the provision for

{berefit from) incame tax shown in the statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Income tax computed at statutory tax rate (P10,186,352) (P8,371.336) (B7.704,035)
Change In unrecognized deferred tax assets {B,758,083) 8430944 8,308,122
Tax effects of:
Expired NOLCO and MCIT 0,297,469 474,258 -
Mondeductible expense 269,507 2,410 -
Interest income already subjected to
final tax (4,019) (4,042) (13,218)
{F9,381,478) RF531,234 £550,871

The components of the Company's unreccgnized deferred tax assets are as follows:

2018 2017
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables R19,392 602 E18,721,223
MOLCO 16,908,982 25,806,327
MCIT 204,827 65565

R36,506,411 R44,593,115

The difference between mavement of unrecognized deferred tax assets above and change in
unrecognized deferred tax assets in the reconciliation of provision for income tax pertains to the tax

effect of initial application of PFRS 9 amounting te P07 million.

In 2018 and 2017, the Company believes that deferred tay assets cannot be utilized in the future

and did not recognize deferred tax assets,
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Deferred tax liability as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 pertains to the cumulative gain on fait value
changes of investment properties amounting to nil and R9.6 million as at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.

As at December 31, 2018, unused NOLCO that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
incame are as follows:

Year Incurred Expiry Date Amount Expired Balance
2018 2021 £1,213,547 B- B1,213,547
2017 2020 27,524 558 - 27,524,558
2016 2019 27,625,169 - 27,625,169
2015 2{3;8 30,871,364 30,871,364 -

B87,234,638 30,871,364 B56,363,274

As at December 31, 2018, unused MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
liability are as follows:

Year Incurred Expiry Date . Amount Expired Balance
2018 2021 R175,322 - B175,322
2017 2020 8934 = 8,034
2016 2019 20,571 = 20,571
2015 2018 36,060 36,060 -

B240,887 P36,060 B204,827

14. Related Party Transactions

Outstanding balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

Mature of Amount of Transaction Outstanding Balance
Transactian 2018 2017 2013 2017
Receivahles
loons Receivables
Entity under common control Loan R26,000,000 E—  E26,000,000 R—
Interast incaome 433,334 = 431,500
Rent Receivabies
Entity under cammon control Rent income 828,000 - 809,518 -
P27,241,018 B -
Due fram related parties
Entity undér comman coatral Advancas BE500,000  #12,300,000 R7,940,000 £5,200,000
Farent Company Advances = 20,000,000 2 6,120,000

B 20,000  F12,420,000

Due to a related party
Parent Company Advances 20,000,000 F-  PF13.880,000 -

Montrade payahle
Parert Company Mznagement fee B~ pI3.092,784 B— R
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Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Loans Receivables
In 2018, the Company granted I-year unsecured loan with 10% per annum interest to MMDC due in
2019,

Due to and from Related Parties

Outstanding balances are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, payable on demand and settlement
occurs in cash. The Company has not made any provision for impairment losses relating to the
amaunts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporting date by taking
into consideration the financial position of the related party and the market at which the related
party operates,

On December 22, 2015, the Company entered into 3 management agreement with the Parent
Company to oversee and supervise the Company’s business matters until December 31, 2017.
On December 3, 2018, the Company obtained approval from its stockholders to enter into a new
management agreement with the Parent Company.

Key Management Personnel
The Company has no key management personnel. Its accounting and administrative functions are
provided by a related party at no cost to the Company.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

a. In the normal course of the Company's prior operations, there are outstanding commitments,
pending litigations and contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the financial statements.
The Company does not anticipate significant losses as a result of these transactions.

b. As discussed in Note 1, under the MOA dated Septemnber 12, 2002 between the Company and
BDQ/PDIC, the Company agreed to transfer its assets and liabilities from its development banking
operations to BDO/PDIC. The Company agread to hold 8D0 free from any contingent claims, iabor
and minority Issues and concerns arising from related assets and liabilities still managed by the
Company until these are assumed by BDO, Further, the Company agreed te indemnify BDO
dgainst losses, claims and damages BDO may suffer in the event such contingent claims, labor and
minority issues affect BDD's rights under the MOA.

The Company has accounted for separately, assets from its development banking operation
pursuant to the MOA. It still has in its possession titles of real estate properties from its
development banking operations with an aggregate fair value of #527.8 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017. Moreover, the Company has cash of £13.9 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, arising from the proceeds of sale of & property.
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16. Basic Loss Per Share

The basic loss per share is computed as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Net loss (R24,305,530)  (P28.435,686)  (P26,270,98¢)
Less dividend rights of preferred stockholders

for the year 1,581,671 1,581,671 1,581,671
Loss attributable to common stockholders {25,887,201) (30,017,357} (27,852,657)
Divided by weighted average number of

common stock 700,298,615 700,298,615 699,728,737
Basic loss per shere (R0.04g) (BD.04) :ED._EEIA_}

The conversion feature of the Company’s preferred stock has potential antidilutive effect,
The Campany has no diluted Income per share in 2018, 2017 and 2016 because the Company Is in a
net loss position,

17

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise of cash, receivables (excluding advances to
officers, employees and sérvice providers), due from related parties, equity securities designated as
FVQLI, acerued expenses and other current liahilities (excluding statutory payables) and due to 2
related party,

The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Company are credit risk and liquidity
risk. The BOD reviews and approves palicies for managing the risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligation. The Company's exposure to credit risk arises prirmarily from
cash in banks and receivables (excluding advances to officers, employees and service providers) and
due from related parties and FVOCL. The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The aging analyses of financial assets as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018
Meither Past Past Due But Not Impaired
Due Nor Less Than Fast Due and’
Impaired 30 Days 31-60 Days impaired Total
Financial Astets at Amortized Cost
Cash In banks B5,597.686 B= B— F= B5.597,686
Receivables* 27,364,244 - - 62,515,672 89,879,916
Due from related parties 7,940,000 - - - 7,940,000
40,901,930 - - 62,515,672 103,417,602
Financial Assets at FYOCI
Equity securities designated as FVOC 500,000 - - - 500,000
P41,401,930 B L BG1,515,672 R103,917,602

*Exciuding movarces fo officers, emplovess mrd service providars amounting o #2_2 nullion,
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017
Neither Past Past Due But Not Impaired )
Due MNor Less Than Fast Duz and
Impalred 30 Days 31-60 Days Impaired Totel
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Cash in banks F1,714,954 B B- B P1,714,954
Recelvables® 24534932 - b BO,277,740 62,731,672
Due from related parties 12,420,000 = = - 12,420,000
16,538, 886 - - 60,277,740 76,866,626
Available-for-sale financial assets 200,000 - - - 300,000
R1E,828,886 B- P~ RG0,277,740  R77,166,626

*Excluding advances 19 afficers, employees ond servioe providers smounting to B2.1 mition.

Credit Quality of Financial Assets. The credit quality of the Company’s financial assets are being
managed by using internal credit ratings such as high grade and standard grade.

High grade - pertains to counterparty wha is not expected by the Company to default in setthng its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal.

Standard grade - include financial assets that are considered moderately realizable and some
accounts which would require seme reminder follow-ups to obtain settlement from the
counterparty.

The Company has assessed the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due riar
impaired as high grade.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle ar meet its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain flexibility by maintaining sufficient cash to meet

all foreseeable cash needs.

The Cempany also maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility, The policy of
the Company is to first exhaust lines available from affiliated cempanies before local bank lines are
availed of. The Company seeks to manage its liquid funds through cash planning on a weekly basis,
The Company uses historical figures and experiences and forecasts from Hs cash receipts and
disbursements. As part of Its liquidity risk management, the Company regularly evaluates its
projected and actual cash flows.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, accrued expenses and other current llahilities {excluding
statutory payables) and due to a related party aggregating B173.4 million and B193.1 million,
respectively, are generally due and demandable,



- 26 -

Fair Values
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's assets and
liabilities measured at fair value and the corresponding fair value hierarchy:

2018 2017
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets
Cash R5,602,963 85,602,963 R1,720,231 R1,720,231
Recetvables* 27,364,244 27,364,244 2,453,532 2,453,932
Due from related parties 7,940,000 7,940,000 12,420,000 12,420,000

Equity securities designated as
FWCCI [formerly classified as
____AFS financial assets) 500,000 500,000 300,000 300,000
#41,407,207 R41,407,207 Fl5,894,163 #16.834,163

Nonfinancial Asset
Investment properties - 2 #60,876,000 B89, 875 000

Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current
lizbilitias** R173,420,473 173,420,473 #1932,060,572 193 060,572
Due to a related party 13,880,000 13,880,000 - -
R1Z7,300,472 FLE7,300473 F193,060,572 F193 060,572

*Excluding advances to afficers, empiopees and sersice providers gmountioeg (o #2,.2 million ane B2.1 miilian oz of Decamber 31, 2018

and 2017, respectively
**Excluding stotutory payabics amounting to B2,607 and FILU73 as ot December 3, 2012 and 26017, resgectively,

Current Finoncial Assets and Ligbilities, The carrying amounts of cash, receivables {excluding advances
from officers, employees and service providers), due from related parties and accrued expenses and
other current liabilities (excluding statutary payables) and due to 2 related party approximate their fair
values due to the short-term nature and maturities of the transactions. The fair value measurement of
current financial assets and liabilities is classified as Level 2 {Significant unobservable inputs).

Equity Securfties Designated os FVOC!, The fair value of this financial asset is determined by
reference 10 quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the reporting date. The fair value
measurement of equity securities designated as FVOC] is classified as Level 1 (Quoted in an active
market},

fnvestment Properties. The fair value of investment properties is determined based on valuations
performed by accredited independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment properties
were arrived at using the market data approach. The fair value measurement of investment
properties is classified as Level 3 (Significant unahservable inputs),

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company’s ability
to continue its operations as a going concern and to maximize shareholder value., The Company
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, when there are changes In the economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new stock. Mo changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Steckholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc,

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc, (the Company),
a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., as at Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the YEears
ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, on which we have rendered our report dated Agrif 12, 2019,

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, 45 amended, we are stating that the Company
has 1,243 common stockholders and 265 preferred stockholders owning one hundred {100} or more
shares each. )

ReYEs TACANDONG & Co.

L]

M 6 i M
BELINDA B, FERNANDO
Partner
CPA Cartificate No. B1707
Tax ldentificaticn Ma. 102-086-538-000
BOA Accreditation Ne. 4782; Valld untll August 15, 2021
SEC Accreditation Mo, 1022-AR-2 Group A

Valid untll March 15, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-004-2017

Valid until January 13, 2020
FTR Mo. 7334334

lssued lanuary 3, 2018, Makati City

April 12, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stackholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc.

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited in accerdance with Philippine Standards in Auditing, the financial statements of Prime
Media Heldings, Inc. {the Company}, a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp,, as at December 31,
2018 and 2017 and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, and have issued gur report
thereon dated April 12, 2019, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinien on the basic
financial statements taken as a whaole. The accompanying Supplementary Schedules for submission to the
Securities and Exchange Commission are the responsibility of the Company's management. These
supplementary schedules include the following:

*  Schedule of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration as at December 31, 2018

= Schedule of Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretations as at December 31, 2018
» Schedules Reguired by Annex 68-F as at December 31, 2018

= Map of the Conglomerate as at Decembeér 31, 2018

* Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators as at December 31, 2018 and 2017

The supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code
Rule 68, and are not part of the basic financial statements, The supplementary schedules have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, fairly state, In all material respects, the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whale,

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

A
M " ' M
SELINDA B. FERNANDO

Partner
CHA Certificate No. B1207
Tax ldentification No. 102-086-538-000
BOA Accreditation Mo, 4782; Valld until August 15, 2021
SEC Accreditation Mo, 1022-AR-2 Group A
Valid until March 15, 2020
BIR Accreditation Mo, DE-005144-004-2017
Walid until January 13, 2020
PTR Mo, 7334334
Issued fanuary 2, 2013, Makati City

April 12, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF

RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as shown in the
financlal statements at beginning of year
Deferred tax liability at beginning of year

(R2,943,798,478)
9,556,800

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as adjusted to
available for dividend declaration at beginning of year

{2,934,241 678)

Effect of equity restru eturing 2,114,921 BR9
Net loss during the year closed to retained earnings (24,573,027)
Movement in deferred tax liabilities (2,556,800)
Effect of initial application of PFRS 9 {2,237,932)

Total retained earnings {deficit} available for dividend
declaratlon at end of vear

(R855,687,568)

Reconciliation:

Amaunt

Unappropriated retained earnings [deficit) as shown in the
financial statements at end of year / Total retainad earnings
(deficit) avallable for dividend declaration at end of year

{PES5,687,568)




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SEC SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY

PAR. 6 PART Il OF SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Table of Contents

Schedule Descrfprfoq Page
A Financial Assets 1

Amaunts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related

o Parties, and Principal Stockholders {Other than Related Pa rties) _NL
c Indebtedness to Related Parties M/A

D Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers L NA
E Capital Stock 2

F Conglomerate Map 3
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Below is a schedule showing financial soundness indicators for the year ended December 31, 2018 and

2017:

o 2018 2017
Current/Liquidity Ratio 0.24 0.09
Current assets Ra4,822 195 216,802,522
Current liabilities 187,303,080 193,071,645
Sulvenc-,!r Ratin {0.18) (0.14)
Lass befare income tax, depreciatian, and
amortization (P33,620,133) {27,808,442)
Total lizbilities {excluding deferred tax
liability) 187,303,080 153,071,645
Debt-to-equity Ratio (1.33) (1.69)
Total liabilities {excluding deferred tax
fiability) R187,303,080 193,071,645
Tatal equity (140,722,692) (114,111,733)
Asset-to-equity Ratio {0.33) (0.78)
Total assets k46,580,288 88,516,712
__ Totalequity {140,722,697) {114,111,733)
Profitability Ratio - =
Mat lngs (#24,573,027) (28,435,686)
Capital deficiency (140,722,652} (114,111,733)




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,

{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMPANY'S
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Mot Mot
Title Adopted .
s Adopted | Applicabla
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristice v
PFRSs Practice Statement Management Cormmentary v
PFRSs Practice Statement 2: Making Materiality Judgments ¥
Philippine Financlal Reporting Standards (PFRS)
Not Mot
PFR Title Adopted
R pte Adopted | Applicable
First-time A T fal ;
PFRS 1 (Revised) irst-time Adoptidn of Philippine Financia Reporting i
Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemiptions for v
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption fram ¥
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters
Amendments lo PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and ¥
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
Amendments to PFRS 1: First-time Adoption of v
Philippine Financial Reperting Standards - Deletion of
Short-term Exemptions for First-time Adopters
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments ta PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled ¥
Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments ta PFRS 2: Classification and v
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
Business Combinations g

PFRS 3 (Revised) |




PFRS

Title

Mot
Adopted

Mot
Applicable

Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business Combination

¥

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Toint
Ventures

PFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4; Applying PFRS 9, Financiol
Instrurments with PFRS 4, Insurance Contracks

PFRS5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Dizposal

PFRS &

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resourcas

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendmants to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financlal
Asspts

Amendments to PERS 7; Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7; Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Lizhilities

Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts

Amendment te PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 1o Condensed Interim Financial
Staterments

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8; Reconciliation of the Total of
the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity's Assets

PFRS 2

Financial Instruments

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities




PFRS

Title

Adopted

Adopted

MNat

Mot

Applicable

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying
the Cansclidation Exceptian

v

PFRS 11

laint Arrangements

Amendments ta PFRS 11: Transition Guidance

=,

Amendments to PFRS 11; Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

4

FFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Cther Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PIRS 12: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Y N IR

Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurerrent

Amendment ta PFRS 13: Short-term recelvables and
Fayables

Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception

PFRS 14

Repulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to PFRS 15 Clarifications to PFR5 15

Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)

PAS

Title

Adopted

Mot
Adopted

Not

Applicable

PAS 1 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1; Presentation of lterns of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendmeant ta PAS 1: Clarification of the
Requirements for Camparative Fresentation

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

pas 2

Inventaries

PAS?

Statement of Cash Flows




|
Not Mot
PAS Title Ad d :
9pte Adopted | Applicable
Amendments ta PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative v
PAS Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates o
and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Pericd o
PAS 11 Construction Contracts v
PAS 12 Income Taxes
Amendments to PAS 12: Recovery of Undarlying Assets
Amendmenzs to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax v
Assets for Unrealized Losses
PAS 186 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Serviting v
Eguipment
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Methad -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated v
Depreciation
Amendment to PAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment
- Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation v
and Amortization
Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants ¥
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 1B Revenue v
PAS 1D
Employee Benefits v
{Revised) PSNE &
Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: 7
Employee Contributions
Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Market v
1ssue
BAS 20 Accounting fer Government Grants and Disclosure of P
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation ¥
PAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs ¥
PAS 24 {Revised) | Related Party Disclosures v
Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personrel
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Berefit Plans v




Not Mot
PAS Title Adopted y
P Adopted | Applicable
PAS 27 ;
Separate Financial Stat nts v
{Amended) parate I e
Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities ' v
Amendments to PAS 27; Equity Method in Separate ¥
Financial Statements
2 i . :
PAZ 28 Investinents in Associates and loint Ventures v
{Amended)
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying v
the Consolidation Exception
Amendments to PAS 28: Measuring an Associate or
: ; : v
Joint Venture at Fair Value
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Prosentation
Financial Instruments: Prasentation v
Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financial Instruments S
and Obligations Arfsing on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32; Classification of Rights |ssues L
Amendments to PAS 32; OHsetting Financial Assets and v
Financtal Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to o
Holders of Equity Instruments
PAS 33 Earnings per Share v
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reparting v
Amendment to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and o
Segment Information for Total Assets and Liabilities
Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of Informatian v
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Repart'
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets. ¥
Amendments to PAS 36; Recoverable Amount v
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v
Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Froportionate Restaterment of Accumulated v
Amortization
Ameridment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptahle o

Methods of Depreciation and Amortization




MNot Mot
PAS Title te
Rvptey Adopted | Applicable
PAS A0 Investment Property v
Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifying the Interrelationship
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property ¥
as Investment Praperty or Qwner-occupied Property
Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment &
Property
PAS 41 Agriculture
| Amendment ta PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
-
Philippine Interpretations
: Mot Not
Interpretations Title Adopted
P - 9P Adopted | Applicable
Changes in Existing Decommissloning, Restoration and
IFRIC1 e v’
Similar Lizhilities
IFRIC 2 Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar #
Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Cantains s v
Lease
— Rights ta Interests arising from Decommissioning, (
Restaration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC & Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market v
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(EHiE 5 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC & Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives o
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFR|C=5; "
Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 1D Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment s
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Lovalty Programmies W
(ERICTA PAS 15 - The Limit 6n a Defined Benefit Asset, v
Minimum Funding Reguirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
IFRIC 17 [Distrihut]cns of Mon-cash Assets to Owners




1
. Not Mot
i itle Ado :
Interpretations T pted Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
inguishing Financial Liabilities with Equi
ERIC 19 Extinguishing Financlal Lia 15 with Equity -
Instruments
Stripping C in th ctio
ERIC 20 ripping osts in the Production Phase of a Surface Y
Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
IERIC 22 me_gn Eu.rrenc',r Transactions and Advance s
Consideration
PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - 5iC
Mot Mot
Interpretations Title Adopted 4
e e Adopted | Applicable
SIC-7 Intreduction of the Euro v
Government Assistance - No Sperific Relation to
SIC-10 ; i v
Operating Activities
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives vy
Incame Taxes - Changes In the Tax Status of an Entity
sIC-25 § v
or its Shareholders
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions nvolving the
SIC-27 ¥
Legal Form of a Lease
5IC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures v
e Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising o

Services

51C-32 Intangible Assets - Wab Site Costs v
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
: SIC FORM 17-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITTES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2) (h) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended 30 September 20119

2. Comimission identificalion number 22401
3. BIR Tax Tdentification No. 000-491-007

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter PRIME MEDTA HOLDINGS, INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of i neorporation or organization METRO MANTLA

6. Industry Classification Code: I i : ! (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of issuer's principal office Postal Code
16" FLOOR CITIBANK TOWER, 8741 PASEOQ DE ROXAS MAKATICITY 1227

8. lssuer's telephone number, including arca code B31-4479
4. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, il changed sinee last report
10, Securities registered pursuant 1o Sections § and 12 of the Code, or Scetions 4 and § of the RSA
Title of each Class Number of shares of common
stock outstanding and amount

of debt outstanding

Common Stock, Pl par value 00,298,616
Preferred Stock, Pl par vahie 14,366,260

11, Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchanpe?

Yes [x] Na [ ]

Thilippine Stock Exchange Common Shares

12, Indicate by check marle whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(2)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26
and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12)
months {or for such shorler period the registrant was required te file such reporls)

Yes[x] No [ ]

(b) Has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes [x] No [ ]
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

The unaudited Financial Stalements of Prime Media Holdings, Tuc. (“"Company™) as of 30 seplember
2019 (with comparative audited Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2018}, and for the
three months and nine months ended 30 Seplember 2018 is in compliance with penerally accepted
accounting principles and there were no changes made in accounting policies and methods of
compulation in the preparation of the interim financial staternents,

Sutnmary of statements of financial position as of 30 September 2019 and 31 December 2018

30 September 31 December 2018

2019 (Audited)  Increase (decrease)
(Unaudited)
Amount Percentage
(™000) (P'000)  (P’OD0)
Currenl assets 42,079 P44.822 (F2.743) (6.12%)
Noncurrenl assets 1,501 1,758 {257) ({14.62%
Tatal Assets . 43,580 P46,580  (P3.000)  (6.44%)
Curreni Liabilities P186,848 P187,303 (P455)  (0.24%)
Noncurrent Liability = = - -
186,848 187,303 (435)  (0.24%;)
Capital Deficiency (143,268) (140,723) {2,545) 1.81%
Total Liabilities and Capilal Deficiency P43.580 P46,S80  (P3,000)  (6.44%)
Summary of unaudited statements of comprehensive income for the three manths and nine months
period ended September 30, 2019 and 201 &
For three months ended 30 For nine months ended
September 30 September
2019 2018 2019 2018
P 000) (P'000) {F000) (P 000)
Revenues (P45) P38 P872 P1.129
Expenses (693) (49,833) (3.416) (53.263)
Loss before tax i (738) (49,305) (2,544) (52,134)
Prowvision for ineome tax = = - =
Tolal comprehensive loss (P738) (P419,305) (P2,544) (521 34)

Summary of unaudiled statements of cash flows for the {hree months and nine months perind ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018:

For three mfru_ths cnduri For nine months ended

30 September 30 September
2019 218 219 2018

(P'000) (1000} (2'000) (P*000)

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities (¥525) (P48,044)  (£3,302) (F29,068)
Cash provided by investing activities 69,876 69,876
Increase (decrease) in cash (525) 21,832 (3,302 40, 808

Cash al beginning of period 2,826 20,606 5,603 1,720
Cash al end of period £2,301 P42,528 P2301  P42,528




Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

The Company has not been actively operating other than the activities connected with the transter of the
Company’s remaining assets to the Philippine Depositary Insurance Carporation (PDIC) and the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The Company also continues to pursye the cleanup of its books and the
seltlement of its remaining obligations to pave the way for possible additional capital infusion from third
party investors,

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Nine months ended 30 September 2019 compared with nine months ended 30 September 2018

Results of operation for the nine months ended 30 September 2019 and 2018 were nel loss of
P2.54 million and £52.13 million, respectively. As compared with the same poriod Tast vear, nef loss for
the current period declined by P49.59 million, which represent an improvement of 95%,

Significant changes in the income statement accounts for the nine months cnded 30 September 2019
versus the same period last year are as follows:

Income

The Company’s income for the current period in the amount of P0.87 million has dropped by
P0.26 million compared with same period last year. The decrease in the Company’s rental income is
primarily due to termination of its lease contract with a third party on 1ts property located in Mandaluyong
City, mid last year. Lower colleclion as with regards to the recovery of accounts previously wntten off,
also contributed to the decline in income.

Expenses

Total expenses during the period amounted to £3.42 million, which is lower by P49.85 milljon compared
with same period lasi year. This represents a decrease of 94% cornpared with same period last year. The
maovement in expenses are attribulable to the following:

d. During the last quarler of previous vear, the Company sold its Legazpi property to Pacific Mall
Corporalion, which sale resulted to a loss of P24.9 million, representing the difference between the
selling prive and fair market value of the property. No similar transaction has occurred during the
current year,

b. Professional fees decreased by P0.47 million compared with same period last vear. Factors thai
resulled to the decline in this account are decreased in paymunts of various legal fees. In 2018, the
Company incurred lepal fies amounting to P0.57 million, in relation to its Cahirsp case, which
resulted to high legal fees last vear, as compated this year.

¢. Taxes and licenses for the perind amounting to P0.43 million is lower by P0.80 million cotapared with
same period last year, The Company paid real property taxes last year for its property located in
Legazpi totalling PO,77 million, which caused lasi year’s expense to be significantly higher compared
with the current period,

d. Rent expensc for the period amounting to £0.07 million is lower by P2.55 million compared with the
same period last year. Last year, the Company made a pavment of its association dues (including those
in arrears) to Landeo Business Park, concerning the Legazpi property, which resulted to high rent
EXpense in prior year.

¢, The significant drop in other expenses from P21.11 million last year to POH2 million this year, is
mainly due to payment of compromise settlement last year to Bangko Seniral ng Pilipinas invelving a
litigation.

A



Three months ended 30 September 2019 compared with three months ended 30 September 2018

Results of operation for the three months ended 3} September 2019 and 2018 were net loss of
P0.74 million and #4931 million, respectively. As compared with the same period last vear, net loss for
the current period declined by P48.57 million, which represent an improvement of 99,

Significant changes in the income statement accounts for the three months ended A0 September 2019
versus the same period last vear arc as follows:

Income

The deereasc in the Company’s rental income is primarily due 1o termination of iis lease comract with a
third parly on its property located in Mandaluyong City, mid last year. Lower collection as with regards
to the recovery of accounts previously written off, also contributed to (he decline in income.

Expenses

Total expenses during the period amounted to P0O.69 million, which is Tower by P49.14 million compared
with same period last vear. This represents a decrease of 99% compared with sume period last vear. The
movement in expenses are attributable 1o the Tollowing:

a. During the lasl quarier of previvus year, the Company sold its Legazpi property to Pacific Mall
Corporation, which sale resulted to a lnss of 24 8 million, representing the ditference between the
selling price and fair market value of the property. No similar transaction has occurred during the
curreni year,

b. Taxes and licenses dropped by P0.84 million compared with same perind last vear, The Company paid
real property taxes last year for its property located in Legazpi totaling P0.77 million, which caused
last year's expense ta he significantly higher compared with the cusrent period,

¢. Rent expense for the period amounting to P0.02 million is lower by 2,54 million compared with (he
same period last year. Last vear, the Company made a payment of its association ducs (including those
in arrears) to Landeo Business Park, concerning the Legaszpi property, which resulled to high rent
EXPENSE I Prior year.

d. The significan! drop in olher expenses from P20.99 million last vear to POI0 million this year, is
mainly due to payment of compromise setilement last year lo Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas involving a
litigation.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assels of the Company as al 30 Seplember 2019 is $43.58 million. The emount is lower hy

P3.0 million compared to the balance as at 31 December 201 8, which represents a decline of 6%, The
change in Total Assets is aliributed 1o the tollowing;

a. Cashi
Cash decreased by £3.30 million or 59%. The decrease is mainly attributable to payments of the
Company’s operating expenses, and acernals. Advances o 2 related party totalling P0L87 million
during the period, also contributed to the decline in cash balance.

b, Due from related parties
During the period, the Company advanced a total of PO.87 million to a related party, Further, the
Company received P0.60 million from advances made 1o NMIIC.



e, Chler current assels
The movement in this account is mainly due (o recoguition of Input VAT from purchases of
goods and/or services during the period totaling P0.32 million, This is sHghtly offset by decrease
m prepaid insurance due o amortization.

d.  Equipment
Decrease in equipment of P0.26 million is attributed to the depreciation recognized for the period.
Mo addition and/or disposal was made during the period.

€. Acerwed expenses and other curvent Kabilities
The account decreased by P0.46 million or 26% during the period, due to payment of accrued
legal fees, rental, and other services.

1. Capital deficiency
The increase in capital deficiency of P2.54 million is mainly due to net loss during the period.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Net cash used in operating activities {or the nine months ended 30 Seplember 2019 and 2018 amounts to
$3.30 nullion and $29.07 million, respectively. Decrease in cash for the current perod is the net resull of
the following significant transaclions:

¢ Payment of accruals and operating expenses during the period.
* Advances made 1o a related party totaling P0.87 million.



HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL ANALYSIS

30 September

2019

31 December 2011 8

_Inerease (Decreasc)

(Unaudited) {(Audited) Ammount Pe.rccnmg_e__
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash P2.301,4584 P5.O02,963 (P3,301,479) (55.929%
Receivables 27,483,567 27,396,444 87,123 (r.32%,
Due from related parties 8,167,154 7,940,000 227,154 2. 804
Other current assels 4127131 3,682 78R 244.343 £,29%;
Total Current Assets 42,079,336 44,822,195 (F2,742,859) (6.12%)
Noncurrent Assets
Bquity securities designated as fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCT) 500,000 500,000 - 0.00%
Equipment 1,000,617 1,258,193 (257,576)  (20.47%)
Total Noncurment Assols 1,500,617 1,738,193 (257.576) (14 H3%)
P43,579.053 P46,580.388  (P3.000.435)  (6.44%)
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL DEFICTENCY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current lighilities P172,967,533 P173,423,080  (P455,547)  (0.26%)
Due to a related party : 13,880,000 13,880,000 - 0.00%,
Total Carrent Liahilities 186,847,533 187.303.080 (455.547)  (0.24%)
Capital Deficiency _
Capital stock 714,664,876 714,664,876 (.00%:
Dreficil (858,232, 456) (B55,6H7.568) (2,544 888) 0,305
Cumulative unrealized valualion gain on equity
securities designaled as FVOC] 300,000 300,000 - D.00%
Total Capital Deficiency (143,267.,580) (140,722,692} (2,544 838) 1.81%
43,579,953 P46,580.388  (P3,000,435)  (6.44%




FINANCIAL INDICATORS

As of 30 September 2019 [ As of 30 Seplember 2018
Net loss 2,544,888 P52,133,735
Quick assets 3,981,483 43,465,452
Current assels - 42,079,336 61,609,481
Total assels 43,579,953 f3,198 257 |
| Current liabilities 186,847,533 219,886 918
| Total liabilities 186,847,533 225,443,718
Stockholders “equity (143,267,580) (166,245,468
Preferred stock 14,366,260 14,366,260
Number of common shares outstanding 700,298,616 700,298,616
Number of preferred shares outstanding 14,366,260 14 ?366,2@_,
bec. ) |
Current Ratiol/ 0.23 0.28 |
Debl to Equity Ratio2/ i (1.30) (1.38)
Asset to Equity Ratiod/ (0.31) {038
| Beturn on Assetsd/ (0.06) (0.69]
Return on Equity5/ 0.02 0.37
Bouok Value per share - [ (0.23) per share (0.26) per share |
Earnings/Toss per share (basic) trailing 12 ,
| months 0.04| (0.09]

14 Current assets divided by curvent liabilities

2/ Total liabilities divided by equity
3/ Total assets divided by equity

4/ Net income divided by average assers
5/ Net income divided by average equity

Total common stockholder’s equity divided
Tratling 12 months Net income/floss) less
dividends paid on preferred stock / weighted

ave. no. of common shares ouistanding

OTHER INFORMATION

There are no known trends, demands, commmitments, cvents or uncertainties that have a material
impact on the Company’s liquidity,

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent fnancial obligation that is material ta the
Company,

There are no malenal off-balance sheet Iransactions, arrangements, obligstions, and other
relationships of the company with unconsclidated entities, or other persons were created during
the interim perod.

There are no material cormmitments for capital expenditures during the internim periad.

There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have or are reasonably expected to have a
material impact on nel sales/ revenues! income from continuing operations,

There is no significant income or expense that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.



g. There is no seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operation.

PART IT - OTHER INFORMATION

The Company may, at its option, report under this item any informastion not previously reporled m a
report on 8EC Form 17-C. It diselosure of such information is made under this Part T1, il need not be
repeated In a report on Form 17-C which would otherwise be required ta he filed with respect to such
information or in a subsequent report on Form 17-Q.

PART III - FINANCTAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Liguidity Ratio
a. Current Ralio
Total Current Assets/ Total Current Liabilities = 0,23

b,  Quick Ratio
Quick assel / Total Current Liabilities = 0.02

Solvency Ratio
a. Deht Ratio

Taotal liabilities / Total assels =4.20

b, Debt to Equity Ratio
Total liabilitics / Shareholder’s Tquity = (1.30)

4. Retunon Eguity Ratio
Met loss / Average shareholder’s equity = 0.02

h. Relumn on Assets
Met loss / Average Total assels = (0.00)

c. Asset to Bquity Ralio:
Total Assets / Ave. Stockholders” Equity = (0.31)

d, Assel Turnowver
Revenue/Total Assets = 0.02

¢. Book value per share
Stockholder’s equity - preferred stock/No. of common shares outstanding = (0,23)



SIGNATURES

Pursnant to the requircments of the Securities Regulation Code, the Company has duly caused this repor
to be signed on its behall by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Issuer: PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS. INC.
Date: 04 November, 2019
By:

Signature; Vi

ROLANDO S. SANTOS

Title: Treasurer

Signature: : _ B
JﬁﬂT-Llﬂ VAKENZUELA

Title: Accountant
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Note (Unaudited) {Audited)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 4 F2,301.484 F5,602, 063
Receivables 5 27,483,567 27,396,444
Due from related parties i3 8,167,154 7,940,000
Other current assets & 4,127,131 3,EE2 THE
Total Current Assets 42,079,336 44,822,195
Noncurrent Assets
Equity securities designated as fair value through
other comprehensive income (FYOCD) H 500,000 S00_000)
Equipmeni g 1,000,617 1,258,163
Total Noncurrent Assels 1,500,617 1,758,193
P43.570.053 P46.580,388
LIABILITY AND CATITAL DEFICIENCY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities [ P172,967,533 P173,423.080
Due to a related party 13 13,880,000 13,880,000
Total Currenl Liabilities 186,847,533 187,303,080
Capital Deficieney
Capital stock 11 714,664 870 714,664 K70
Deficit (858,232,456) (835,687.568)
Cumulative unrealized valuation gain on equity
securities designated as FVOCI ) 300,000 300,000
Total Capital Deficicney - (143,267,580 (140,722,692)

P43,579,953

Pdn, 580 38K

dee gocompanying Notes to Financial Statemeniy



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Sul.usidinyy of WY Business Mnuagemen! Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE, INCOME

Three Months Nine Months Ended
Ended September 30, September 30,
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

INCOME
Rental 12 P2485,400 P305,314 P745,200 PR77,457
Recovery of accounts writien-off {295,000} 219,000 R 00H 247,202
Interest income 4 1,370 3,351 4367 4,594
Other Income B - - 42,000 . -

(45,230) 527,665 871,567 1,129,255
EXPENSES
Loss on sale of investment properiics — 24844 204 = 24,896,294
Professional fees 374,879 393,528 1,476,822 |,946,074
Quiside services 114,313 78,348 304,561 1,212,726
Taxes and licenses (5,390) 835,271 426,246 1,227,508
Depreciation 9 B5.B5Y B3,140 257,576 249 424
Eent 12 19,884 2,561,249 T1.878 2,620,590
Cthers 103,609 20985425 819372 21,110,283

603,154  49,833254 3416455 53262991
NET LOSS (P738,384) (P49,305,589)  (P2,544,888) (P52,133,736)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share |5 (P0.00T) {B0.07) (PO.004) (P07

See accompanving Notes to Financial Statements.



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Snbsidiary of RYM Business Manage ment Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Nine Months Ended September 30,

Note 2019 20018

CAPITAL STOCK 11
Common stock - B par value P700,298.616 BTO0298 616
Preferred stock - £] par value 14,366,26() 14,366.26()
14,664,876 714,664 876

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of period

Effect of equity restructuring

2,114,921 860
(2,114,921 869)

DEFICIT
Balance ai beginning of period
Effect of equity restructuring

(855,687.568)

(2,943,798 478)
2,114,921 869

Nei logs (2.544.888) (52,133 736)
Balance at end of perod (H58,232.456)  (HR1,010,345)
CUMIILATIVE UNREALIZED VALUATION

GAIN ON EQUITY SECURITIES DESIGNATED

ASFVOC] H 300,000 100,000

(F143,267,580)

(P166,245 469)

—— e

See aocompanying Notes to Financial Stafements.
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

{A Bubsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended September 30,

Note 2019 2018

CASI FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (P738.384) (P4v305,589)
Adjustiments for:

Depreeiation o 85,859 B3.140

Interest income _ 4 (1,370) (3,351)
Operating loss before working capital changes (633,895)  (49,225,800)
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables 04,100 (190,072}

Due from related parties 16,110 (7.560,000)

Other current assets 29610 (4.026,74T)
Increase (decrease) in:

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (11,955) 0,835,518

Due o a related party - 6,120,000
Met cash generaled from (used for) operations (526,030} (48,047,102
Imterest received 1,370 3351
Met cash used in operating aclivities (5f4.,ﬁﬁi]} (48,043,751)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investment properties - 69.876,000
NET INCREASE (DECREASE IN CASH) (524,6610) 21,8372 744

CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

2,826,044 20,695 670

CASH AT ENID OF PERIOD

P2,301,484

P42,527.918

Sce arcomipanving Nofes o Flaanciod Statements,
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine Months Ended September 30

2

2019

2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITLES
Losa before income tax
Adjustments {or:

(P2,544,888) (P52,133.733)

Depreciation 257,576 249 420

Inlerest income {4,367) (4.596)
Operating loss before working capital changes (2,291,679) (SI,EHH,‘JH—}
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables (87,123) (522,272)

Due from related parties (227,154) 813,062

Other current asseis (244,343)  (4,290,061)
Increase (decrease) in:

Acerued expenses and other eurrent Habilities {455,547) 6,815,273
___Due to a related party - 20,000,000
Nel cash generated from (used for) operations (3.305.846) (29,072 909)
Interest received ) - 4,367 4,586
Met eash used in operating activitics (3.301.479)  (29,068,312)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investment properties — 69,876,000
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASI (3,301,479) 40,807,688
CASIH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 5602963 1,720,231

CASH AT END O PERIOD

2,301,484

42,527,919

hee gecompanying Noley to Financial Statenenty
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of R¥YM Business Management Corp,)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Sceurilies and Fxchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1963, On October 1, 2003, the SEC
approved the amendment of the Company’s articles of incorporation, changing its primary purpose
from a development bank to a holding company and to hold investments in the media industry. On
March 4, 2013, the SEC approved the extension of the Company’s corporate life for another 50
years.

On July 9, 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. approved the public listing of the Company’s
shares of stock. As al December 31, 201% and 2017, 663,713,458 Compeny shares are publicly
listed.

The Company is a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp. (RYM or the Parent
Company), a holding company registered and domiciled in the Philippines.

On September 12, 2002, the Company agreed to transfer assels and lahilities arising from its
development bank operations to Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. (BDO) and TPhilippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation (PDIC) under a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA). As at December 31,
2018 and 2017, the Company has liabilities arising from the MOA which pertain mainly to the
estimated transfer taxes and registration fees related to the transfer of assels to BDOPDIC and
other related linbilities (see Note 10).

The Company’s registered office and principal place of business is at 16th Floor, Citibank Tower.,
8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City,

Status of Operations

The Company is still exploring for a new business. Tfs current activities comprise mainly of
transferring assets related 1o its previous development bank operations to BDO and PDIC. Thus,
the Company has continued to incur Iosses resulting in a capital deficiency of F140.7 million and
Fl14.1 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, RYM, the major stockholder,
howeyer, has continued to provide (he necessary financial support to suslain the Company’s
operations. Certain stockholders converted their preferred stock of $#34.2 million inlo common
stock in 2016, converled their advances of P6O0.S million to additional capital in 2014 and infused
cipital aggregating P179.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce the capital deficiency.

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Company’s equity restructuring (o reduce its deficit by
applying its additional paid-in capital {APIC) amounting to P2,114.9 million (see Note 117,

2. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Philippine Financial
Eeporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financizal Reporling Standards Couneil and
adopted by the SEC, imecluding SEC pronouncements. This financial reporling framework
imcludes PFRS. Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations from
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee.

16| Page



Measurcment Bases
The financial statemenls are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the C otparty’s functional
currency. All values represent absolule amounts excepl otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for its investment
properties and equily securities designated as fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) which are carried at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets and fair value of the consideration received in exchanpe
for incurring liahility,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a bability in an
orderly transaction between market parlicipants at the transaction date. The Company wses
valuation techniques that arc appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure [air value, maximizing the use of relevant obhservable mputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable fnputs.

The Company uses market cbservable data to a possible extent when measuring the fair value of
an asset or a liahility. Tair values are categorized into differcnt levels in & fair value hierarchy
based on inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

s Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilifics.

e Level 2 - Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level fnput that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly ohservable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest Tevel input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabililics that are recognized in the financial stalements on a recurming basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing calegorization (based on the lowesl level input that is sipnificant 1o the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has delermined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the pature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Further mlormation abeut the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Notes 7,
Band 4.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial vear, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for
antiual periods beginning on or after January 1, 201 8:

= PEFRS 9. Financial Instruments — This standard teplaced PAS 39, Financial Instruments;
Recognition and Measurement (and all the previous versions of PTRS9). I contains
requiremnents  for the classification and measurement of financial assets and [nsneial
liabilities, impairment, hedge accounting, recognition and derecognition.

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amorlized cost
or fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the
classificalion by reference to the business model within which these are held and {is
contractual cash flow characteristics.

17| Pape



For financial liabilities, where the fair value option is laken, the amount of change in fair value
of a financial liability designated as [air value through profit or loss {(FVPL) that 1s attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that lability is recopnized in other comprehensive income
(OCI) (rather than in profil or loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch,

For the impainment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an expected credit loss model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract. Eecognition of a
credit loss should no longer wait for there to be objective evidence of impairment.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements
to better reflect how risk management activitics are undertaken when hedging [inancial and
non-financial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39.

As allowed under transitory provisions of PFRS 9, the Company applied the requirements of
PERS 9 retrospectively but opted not to restate the comparative infarmation.

‘The Company has performed an assessment and has determined the mipact of PFRS 9 on its
financial instrarnents.

Classification and Measurement, On the date of initial application, January 1, 2018, the
Company made the following reclassifications:

(i) The Company's cash, reccivables and due from related parties that were classified as
loans and receivables under PAS 39 are now classified as financial assets at amorized
cosl. These financial assels are held to collee! contractual cash flows and pive rise to cash
flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.

(ii) The Company’s investment in a club share of Valley Golf & Country Club classificd as
available-for-sale financial assets under PAS 39 will be measured at FVOCT under PFRS
9. But unlike in PAS 39, the accumulated gains or losses presented in OCT related to
these investmenls will not be subsequently reclassified in profit ar loss.

The Company has not designated any [inancial liabilities as st FVPL. Therc arc no changes in
classification and measuremnent for the Group’s financial liabilities,

The application of the classification and measurcment requirements under PERS 9 did
not materially atfect the carrving amounts of the Company’s financial mstruments as at
January 1, 2018,

dmpatrment.  The new impairment requirements resulled lo additional provision for
impairment with respect to loans receivable and reeeivables arising from the Company’s rent
income. For these receivibles, the Company applies the simplified approach in measuring the
expected credit losses. This approach does not track chanpes in credit risk. but instead
recognize an allowance for impairment losses hased on lifetime expeeted credil losses. This
resulted in an inerease of the allowance for impairment losses with a corresponding increase in
deficit and increase in unrecognized deferred lax assets by 2.2 million and $0.7 million,
respectively, as at January 1, 2018,

For other financial assels at amorlized cost which mainly comprise of cash in banks and due
from related parties, the Company applies the general approach in measuring the expected
credit losses. The new impairmenl requirements did not result in significant expected credit

18| Pape



For financial liabilities, where the fair value option is taken, the amount of change in fair value
ol a financial liahility designated as Fair value through profil or loss {(FVFL) thal is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income
(OCI) {rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch,

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS U infroduces an expected credil loss model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of 2 contract. Recognition of a
credit loss should no longer wait for there to be ohjeclive evidence of impairment.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substaniial overhau] allowing financial statements
to better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and
non-financial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,

As allowed under transitory provisions of PERS 9, the Company applied the requirements of
PFRS 9 retrospectively but opted not to restate the comparalive informalion.

The Company has performed an assessment and has determined the impact of PFRS 9 on its
financial instruments.

Classification and Measwrement. Ou the date of initial application, Tenuary 1, 2018, the
Company made the following reclassifications:

(i) The Company’s cash, receivables and due from related parlics that were classified ag
loans and receivables under PAS 39 are now classified as financial assets at amortized
cost. These fmancial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows and give rise to cash
flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.

(it} The Company’s investment in a club share of Valley Golf & Country Club classified as
available-for-sale financial assets under PAS 39 will be measured at FVOCI under PERS
9. But unlike in PAS 39, the accurmulaled gains or losses presented in OCI related (o
these investments will not be subscquently reclassified in profit or loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liabilities as at FVPL. There are no changes in
classification and measurement for the Group®s financial liabilitics,

The application of the classification and measurement requirements under PFRS O did
not materially affect the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instraments as at
January I, 2018,

Impairment.  The new impairment requirements resulted to additional provision for
impairment with respeet o loans receivable and receivables arising from the Company’s rent
incomme. For these receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach in measuring the
expected credit losses.  This appreach docs not track changes in credit risk, bul instead
recognize an allowance for impainment losses based on Lifetime expected credit losses. This
resulted in an inerease of the allowance for impairment Tosses with a corresponding increase in
defieit and increase in unrecognized deferred lax assets by 2.2 million and B0.7 million,
respectively, as at January 1, 2018,

For other financial assets at amortized cost which mainly comprise of cash in banks and due

from related parlics, the Company applies the general approach in measuring the expected
credil losses. The new impairment requirements did not result in sipnificant expected credil






loss. The [ollowing are considered in the assessmen:

Cash in banks are deposited with reputable counter party hanks that possess good credit
ratings.

For related parly transactions, the Company considercd the available liquid asscts of 1he
related parties.

e PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers — The new standard replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, and related mnterpretations. It establishes a single
comprehensive framework fur revenue recognition (o apply consislently across \ransactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle based on a five-step model to be applied
to all contracts with customers, enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidance (e.g. the
point at which revenue is recognized. accounting for variable considerations, costs of Tulfilling
and obtaining a contract, ete.).

« Amendment to PFRS 15, Revene from Contract with Customers - Clarvification to PFRS 15 -
The amendments provide clarifieations on the following topies: (a) identifying performance
obligations: (b} principal versus agent considerations; and (c) licensing, The amendments alsn
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts,

e Amendments to PAS 40, Jnvestment Property - Transfers of Investment Froperty — The
amendments clarify that transfers to, or from, investment properly (including assets under
construction and development) should be made when, and only when, there is evidence that a
change in use of a properly has ocourred,

The adoption of the forcgoing new and amended PFRS did nol have any material effect on (he
financial statements of the Company except for PFRS 9. Additional disclosures will be inchuded
in the financial statements, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS in Tssue But Not Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are nol yet effective for the vear ended December 31,
2018 and have not been epplied in preparing the financial stalements are summarized below.

Effective for anmual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 -

e PFRS 16, Leases — This standurd replaces PAS 17, Leases, and its related interpretations. The
mosl significant change introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will he
brought onto lessees” statement of financial position under a single moda! (except leases of
less than 12 maonths and leases of low-value assels), eliminating the dislinction between
operating and finance leases. lessor accounting, however, remains larpely unchanped and the
distinetion between operating and finance lease is relained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is nof
expecled to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company.  Additional
disclosures will be included in the financial statcments, as applicable.

Financial Assets and Linbilities

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liahility in the
statements of financial position when il becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument. In the case of regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and
derecognition, as applicahle, is dome using selllement date accounting

Initial Recognition, Financial instruments are recognized inilially al fair value, which is the fair
value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The mitial
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measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at TVPL, includes {ransaction
CostL.

“Day 17 Difference. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different fram (he fair
value of other observable current market transactions in the same mstrument or based on oA
valuation technique whose variables include only data from ohservable market, the Company
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 17 difference) in
profit or loss. In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Company deems the
transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 17 difference in profit or
loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For cach
transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 17
difference.

Classification. 'The Company classifies ity financial assets al initial recognilion under the
following categories: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b} financial assels at amortized cost, and
{c) financial assets at TVOCL Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified as cither
Imancial liabilities at FVPL or other financial labilities al amortized cost. The classilication ol &
tinancial instrument largely depends on the Company’s business model.

The Company does not have financial assets and Labilities at FVPL and debt instruments
measured at FVOCI,

Financial Assets at Amoriized Cost. A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if both
ol the following conditions are met:

» the financial assel is held within a business model whose objective 1% o hold financial assets
in order to colleet contractual cash flows: and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are
salely paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognilion, financial assets at amorlized cast are subsequently measured af amortized
cosl using the effective inlerest method, less allowanee for impairment, if any. Amorlized cost i3
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees thal are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Gaing and losses are tecogmized in profit or loss when
the fimancial assets are derccognized and through amorlization process, Financial assels at
amortized cost are included under current assets il realizability ar collectability is within 12
months after the reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrenl assets.

Classified under this category arc the Company's cash, receivables {excluding advances to
officers, employees and service providers) and due from related parties, '

Equity Secwrities Designated as FVOCI (Starting Jameary {, 2018;. FEyuily securities which are
not held for trading may be imrevocably designated at iniial recognition under the FVOC]
category.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, After initial
recogmition, financial assets al FVOCI are measured at fuir value with unrealized gains or losses
recognized m OCI and are included under “Other comprehensive mcome™ account in the equity
section of the statements of financial position. These fair value changes are recognized i eeuity
and are nol reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. On disposal of these equity
securities, any cumulative unrealized valuation gains will be reclassified {o retained earnings.

Classilied under this category is the Company’s investrent in a club shere of Valley Golf &
Country Cluh.



AFS Financial dssets (Prior to Jonuary 1, 2018, AFS financial assels are measured al [air value,
The changes in fair values are recognized in OCT and accumulated in equity until the investrent is
sold, collected, or olherwise disposed of or until the invesiment is determined to be impaired, al
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity are included in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities al Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are caleporized as financial lahilitics
at amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company
having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial assel to the holder, or to settle the
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial assel for &
lixed number of its own equily instruments.

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs, Afier initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subscquently measured at
amortized cost using the eflcctive interest method, Amortized eost is caleulated by taking into
aceount any discount or premium on the issuc and fees that are an integral part of the eflective
interest rate,

Classified under this category are the Company’s acerued expenses and other current liabilitics
{excluding statutory payables) and due to a related party.

Impairment of Financial Assels at Amortized Cost

The Company records an allowance for expected credit loss based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive. The difference is then discounted at an approximation 1o the asset’s
original effective interest rale.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liahilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or where applicable, a purt of a financial asset or parl of a
group of similar financial assets) is derccognized by the Company when:

¢ theright to receive cash flows from the asset has cxpired;

e the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, hut has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full withoul material delay Lo a third parly under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

¢ the Company has transferred its right to receive eash Aows from the ssset and either (@) has
transferred substanuially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (h) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assels, but has transferred control over
the assel.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has enfered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transfarred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards ot the asset nor fransferred control of the assel, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company”s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of
guarantee over the translerred asset, if any, is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial lability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial lahility is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss.
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Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilitics

Financial assets and Habilities are offset and the nel amount is reported in the statements of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable lepal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or 1o realize the assets and
getile the liabilities simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting
agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of
financial position,

Other Current Assets
This account mainly consists of creditable withholding taxes (CWT'), prepeyments and {he excess
of input value-added tax (VAT) over outpul VAT,

CHT. CWI represents the amount withheld by the Company’s customers in relation to ils income.
CWT can be utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by
certificates of creditable tax withheld at source subject 1o the rules on Philippine income taxation.
CWT is slaled at estimated net realizable value and is included as parl of “Other current assets”
account in the statements of financial position.

Prepayments. Prepayments are expenses not yel incurred but paid in advance. Prepayments are
apportioned over the period covered by the pavment and charged to the appropriate account in
profit or loss when incwred.  Prepayments that are expected to be realized for no more than
12 months after the reporting period are classified as cirrent asset. Otherwise, these are classified
as noncurrenl asset.

FAT. Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

¢ where the tax incurred on a purchase of assels or services is fiof recoverable fiom the taxation
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the assel or
ag part of the expense item as applicable; and

* receivables and payables that are staied with the smount of tax included,

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxation authority is included as part of “Other
current assets” account in the statements of fmancial position,

Iovestment Properties

Investment properties, accounted for under (he fair value model, are property held either to cam
rentals or for capital appreciation, or bath, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative pposes,

Investment properties are measured initially al cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the cost of replacing part of existing investment properties at the time that cosl 15
incurred and il the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of
investment properties. Subsequent to inilial recopnition, investment properlies arc stated at faur
value, which reflects markel conditions al the reporting dateas delermined by independent
appraisers. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properiics are
included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Transfers are made 1o or from investment property only when therc is a change in use. For g
transler from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for suhsequent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy on
property and equipment up to the dale of change in use.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have heen disposed of or when the
investment propertics are permanently withdrawn from use and no further economic benefit is
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cxpected [rom its disposal. Any gain or loss on the Tetitement or disposal of an investment
property is recognized in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Eguipment

Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any.

The initial cost of equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the equipment have been pul into operalion, such as repairs,
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year the cosly are
incurred. In siluations where il can be clearly demanstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an inerease in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
computer equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as additional costs of equipment. The cost of replacing a component of an item of
equipmenl is recognized if it is probable that the firture economic benefite embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and ils cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced component is derecognized.

When parts of an item of equipment have different usefl lives, they arc accounted [or as separate
items (major components) of equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 5 years for
computer and transportation equipment.

The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of ceonomic benefits
from equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accurmulated deprecialion
and any impairment in value are removed [rom the accounts. Any resulting gain or loss is credited
to or charged apainst current operations.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication thal nonfinancial
assets may be impaired when events or changes in circumstances indicate thal the carrying amount
of an assel may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and if the CHTTYIngE amount
cxeeeds the estimated recoverable amount, nonfinancial assets are writlen down to il recoverahle
amount, which is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost
to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an assel in an arm’s length transaction. In
asscssing value in use, the estimaled future cash flows are discounted ta present value using a
pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific lo the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss,

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
tecognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indicalion
exisls, the recoverable amount is estimaled. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrying amount of the assel
is increased to its recoverable amount, However, that increased amount cannot excesd the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss heen recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recogmized in profil or loss.

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.
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APIC. Froceeds andfor fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are
recognized as APIC. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuanee of new shares aro
treated as deduction from APIC.

Deficit. Deficit represents the cumulative balance of the Company’s resulls of operations.
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent thal it is probable that economic henefits will fiow o the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliahly,

Revenue from coniract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the
contract has been salisfied at a point in time or over time.

The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it i acling as a principal or
as an agenl. The Company has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of its revenue source.

The following specific recognilion criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.
Rental. Renlal income is recognized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease.

Recovery of Accounts Written-off Income from other sources is recognized when the amount is
aclually received.

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues. taking into gecount
the effective yield on the asset.

Other Income. Other income is recopnized when eamed.

Expense Recognition

Expenses constitule cost of administering the business, These costs are expensed upon receipl of
goods, utilization of services, or when the expense is incurred.

Operating Tease

Company as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains Substantially all the risks and rewards of
awnership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized in profil or
loss on a siraight-line basis over the lease term,

Company as @ Lessor. Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks
and beneflits of ownership of the assel are classified as opcrating leases.  Initial direct costs
incwrred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amound of the leased asset ang
recognized over the lease term on the same hases as rent income. Conlingent rents are recognized
ag revenue in the period in which they are earned,

Income Taxes

Current Tax.  Currenl tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation anthorities. The tax rate used to compule the amount 1s the
one that has been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred Tax, Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the
tax bascs of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting plUrposes.

Deferred lax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels
arc recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of any urused tax
credits from the excess of minimum corporale income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporatc
income tax and any unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable
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that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized,  Deferred tax,
however, is not recognized when it arises from the inilial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction thal is not a business eombination and, at the time of the iransaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax iz recognized in profit or loss cxcept to the extent that it relates 1o 4 business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as OCL

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al cach reporiing date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable thai sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assels are reassessed al
each reporting date and arc recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fitture taxahle
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is setiled, based on tax rate that has been enacled
or substanlively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset. if a legally enforeeable right exists 1o offset current
tax assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same laxable enlily and
the same taxation authority.,

Basic and Diluted Income (Loss) per Share

The Company computes its basic income (loss) per share by dividing net income (loss) for the
period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the periad,

Diluted income per share amounts are computed in the same manner, adjusted for the dilutive
effect of any potential common shares. There is no such information in 2019 and 2018 hicause
the Company is in a net loss position.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revernues and expenses that relate to the
transactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only one segment
which is a holding company,

Related Parties

Parties are eonsidered to be related if one parly has the ability, directly or indirectly, to contral the
other party or exercisc significant influence over the other party in maling financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting
entity and a related parly, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Proyisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {lepal or construclive) as a
result of a pasl event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

Provisions are made using the best estimates of the amount required to setlle the abli galion and are
discounted to present values using a pre-tax rate that reflecls current markel assessments of the
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time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. Changes in estimates are reflected in
profit or loss in the period they arise.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilitics are not recognized in the financial statements, They are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are nat recagnized in the financial statements but
are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

Events after the Heporting Date

Post year-end events thal provide additional information about the Company's financial position at
the end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflecied in the financial slalements. Post VEAT-
end evenls that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparalion of financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires management (o exercise
judgment, make estimales and assumptions that affert the amounts reported in the financial
statements.  The judgmenl and estimates used in the financial slalements are based upon
management’s evaluation of relovant facts and circumstances as al the reporling date, While the
Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriale, significan| differences
the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the estimated
amounts. Actual resulls could differ from such estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgment, aparl from those involving estimates, which have the mast sigmificant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements,

Assessing the Company's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, The Company has incurred
continuous losses resulting in a capilal deficiency of 1407 million and 21141 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, Manapement believes this trend to continue for the
twelve months afier reporting date. As discussed in Nate 1, the stockholders provide continuing
necessary financial supporl to the Company while new business opportunities are not yel
available. Based on this, the financial statements are prepared on a poing concern hasis of
acconting,

Classifying Financial insiruments. The Company exercises judgments in classifying a financial
instrument on initial recognition either as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in aceordance with the substance of the contractual ammangement and the definitions of
a financial asscl, a financial liability or an equity instrament, The substance of a financial
mstrument, rather than its legal form, governs its clagsification in the stalements of finencial
position.

The Company classified its investment in a club share of Valley Golf & Country Club as financial
asscts at FVOCI (see Note 8),

Accounting for Lease Conmmiimenis: Company as a Lessor, Management exercises judgment in
determining whether subslantially all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the assets
held for lease arc retained by the Company. lesse contracts where the Company retains



substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are accounted for
as operating leases. Otherwise, these are considered ay finance leases.

The Company, as a lessor, has entered into property subleases where it has determined that it
retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership on those properties. As such, the lease
agreemenls are accounted for as operating leases.

Rent income amounted to 0.7 million and $0.9 rmillion in 2019 and 2018, respectively (see Note
12),

Accounting for Lease Commitments: Company as a Lessee. The Company, as a lessce, has
various operating lease agreements. The Company has determined that the risks and benefits of
ownership related to the leased properties are retained by the lessor. Aeccordingly, the lease is

accounted for as an operating lease.

Rent expense amounted (o P0.07 million and P2.62 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively (see
Note 12).

Classifiing Investment Properties and Owner-Oceupicd Propertics. The Company determines
whether a properly qualifies as investment property, In making its judgnent, the Company
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets held
by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only 1o the
property but also to the other assets used in the production or supply process.

The carrying amount of investmenl properties amounted to nil and Po0.% million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 7).

Evaluating Contingencics. The Company is a party Lo certain lawsuits or claims arising from the
ordinary course of business. However, the Company’s manzgemen! and legal counsel believe that
eventual liabilities under these lawsuils or claims, if any, will not have a material cffect of the
Company’s financial statements.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustmen! (v the carrving amounts
of assets and labilities within the next financial year, are described below,

Estimating Liabilities Reluted to Previous Developmenr Bank Operations. The estimated
liabilities related to previous developmeni bank operalions of the Company is based on {he
management’s best estimate of the amount expecied to be incurred to settle the obli gation,

The liabilities arising from the MOA amounted to B151.1 million as at sepiember 30, 2019 and
December 31, 2018 (see Note 10).

Assessing Expecied Credit Losses on Financial Assets ar Amortized Cost. The Company applies
the simplified approach on its rent receivables and the general approach on all its oiher financial
assets al amortized cost in measuring the expected credit loss. The Company estimales the
expected credit losses on its rent receivables using a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for [orward-looking factors specific to the debiors and
the economic environment.

The Company assessed that cash are deposited with reputable counterparty banks that POSSESS
good credit ratings. For related party transactions, and other receivables, the Company
considered the available liquid assets of the related parties and letter of guarantec from the
slockholders,

The Company assesses lhat a financial asset is considered credit impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental effect on the estimated future cash flows of the asset have occurred
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such as significant financial difficulty on the part of the franchisee or dehtor’s cessation of
operations.

No impairment losses were recognized in 2019 and 2018,

The aggregate carrying amount of receivables (excluding advances to officers, employees ard
service providers) and due from related parties ameounted to P35.6 million and £35.3 million as al
September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respeclively (see Notes 5 and 13),

Determining Fair Value of Investment Properdies, The Company engaged an independent
appraiser lo determine the fair value of ils investruent properties. The fair value was delermined
using the market data approach. Market data approach involves the comparisen of the land to
those that are more or less located within the vicinity of the appraised property and are subject of
recent sales and offerings.  Adjustments were made to ardve at the marke! value by considering
the location, size, shape, utility, desirability and time element,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value of investment properties
are discussed in Note 7,

Gain on fair value changes which were recognized in the statements of coruprehensive income
amounted to ml in 2019 and 2018, The carrving value of investiment properiies amounted to nil as
at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 (see Note .

Assessing Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. The [actors that the Company considers important which could trigger an
impairment review include the following:

» significant underperformance relative to expecled histodeal or projected future operaling
resulis;

» significant changes in the manner of use of the aciuired assels or the sirategy for overall
husiness; or

= significan! negative indusiry or economtic trends,

No impairment losses were recognized in 2018, 2017 and 2016 excepl for impairment losses
recognized on advances to officers, employees and service providers amounting to 2.1 million in
2017 (see Note 5).

The carrying arnount of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are as follows:

Seplember 30, 2019 December 31, 201 &

Note {Unaudited) (Audited)
(Mher current assets & £4,127.131 PIAR2,TRR
Equipment & 1,000,617 1,258,193
Advances to officers, emplovees and
service providers 5 41,500 32,200

Assessing Realizability of Deferved Tax Assets. The Company reviews ils deferred tax assets at
each reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that il is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assefs (o be
utilized.

The Company’s unrecognized deferred tax assels amounted 1o B36.5 million and P44.6 million as
al December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, Management believes that there will be no
sufficient future taxable profits against which these deferred tax assets can be ulilized.
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4, Cash

This account consists oft

September 30,2019 December 31, 2018

{Unaudited) {Audited)

Cash on hand 5,277 BA2TT
Cash it banks 2,296,207 5,597 686
P2.301.484 5,602,903

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income from cash
amounted to P4.367 and P4,596 in 2019 and 2018, respectively,

in hanks

5. Receivables

This accoun consists of:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Note (Cmandited) {Audited)
Loans receivables:
Third parties P62.277.740 P62,277.740
Related party 13 26,000,000 206,000,000
Advances to officers, employees and
service providers 2,167,835 ' 2,158,535
Fent receivables: 12
Felated party I3 1076400 809 518
Third parties 261,932 309,932
Interesl receivahle 13 341,667 431,500
Others - 51,226
92,125,574 92038451
Less allowance for impairment [osses 64,642,007 64,642 007
P27.483 567 P27,396.444

Loans receivable from third partics are related to the Company’s previous bank operations and

receivable from a related party arising from loan agreements entered during the year,

Advances to officers, employees and service providers represent unliquidated, noninterest-bearing
advances for processing of the transfer of title of properties o PODIC and BDO. These are

liguidated upon the accomplishment of the purposes for which the advances were granled.
Movements in allowance for impairment losses are as follows:

September 30, 2019 (Unaudited)

Advances to

officers,
TLoans employees and Hent
receivables service providers reccivables Total
Balance at beginning of period B62.277,740 F1126,335  P237932 04,042,007
Effect of initial application of PFRS & - - - -
Balance at end of period P62,277,740 P2.126,335 £237.932 P64,642,007




December 31, 2018 (Audited)

Advances to
officers,
Leans  emplovees and Rent
receivables  service providers  receivables Trital
Balance al beginning of year ®A0,277, 740 2.126,335 F- P2 404 075
Eftect of mnitial application of PTRS 9 2,000,000 237,932 2,237.932
Balance at end of year ) POL2TIM40 #2,126.335 Pﬁﬂ?,%) Bod,pd2,007

The Company recovered various accounts written-oft in prior years amounting to P0.08 million
and P0.25 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

6. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

— {Unaudited) (Audited)
CWT £3,304,567 F31.208 209
Prepayvments 428,965 515,924
Nel juput VAT 303,590 BE 635

B4127.131 Bl BR2 7R

Prepayments mainly pertain to prepaid insurance and taxes.

7. Investment Properiies
Mowvements in this account are as follows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Balance at beginning of year Fe BA9,876,000
Disposal - — (69,876,000)
Balance at end of year o B

This account represents parcels of commercial land located in Legazpi City, Albay, which are held
for capital appreciation,

In 2018, the Company sold ils investment properties far a total consideration of P45.0 mi hon,
resulting to a loss on sale of £24.9 million. In concluding the sale transaction, the management
took into account the cost of maintaining the property as well as other expenses and liabilitics
which the Company needs to defray.

The fair values of the invesiment properties as at December 31, 2017 are based on valuations
performed by accredited independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment properties
were arrived at using the market data approach. Market Data Approach invalves the comparison
of the land to those that are more or less located within the vicinity of the appraised properly and
are subject of recent sales and offerings. Adjustments were made to armive at the markel value Iy
considering the location, size, shape, wtility, desirability and time element. In this approach, the
value of the Jand was based on sales and listings of comparable property Tegistered within the
vicinity.  This requires the adjustments of comparable properly by reducing reasonable
comparative sales and Tistings lo a common denominator, This was done by adjusting the
differences between lhe subject property and those actual sales and listings regarded as
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comparable. The properties used as bases of comparison are situated within the vicinity of the
subject property. The comparison was premised on the factors of location, size, and shape of the
lot, time element and others.

The significant unobservable inpuls to fair valuation are as follows:

Price per square meter P20000-P22 857
Yalue adjustments 5% to T5%

Price per Square Meter: estimated valuc prevailing in the real estale market depending on the
location, area, shape and time element.

Value Adjustments: adjustments are made to bring the comparative values in approximation ta the
investment property taking into account the location, size, archileetural features and ctc.

Sensitivity Analysis. The factors considered in delermining the fair value of the property sre the
(a) location of the property with reference to quality neighborhood, (b)  size, (¢}  physical
characleristics such as shape, topography and read frontage; and (d) time element. Significant
increase (decrease) in price per square meter would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
value measurement. Significant increase (decrease} in value adjustments would result in a lower
{(higher) fair value measurement.

b, LEquity Securities Designated as FVOC]
The Company’s equity securities designated as FVOCI consist of a club share in Valley Golf &
Country Club. The fair value of the club share is determined by reference to published price
quotations in an active market.

Movements in this account are as [bllows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

{Unaudited) {Audited)

Cost 2200,000 P00, 000
Unrealized gain on fair value changes

Balance at beginmng of period 300,000 100,000

Fair value change - 200,000

Balance at end of period 300,000 300,000

B500,000 BA00,000

¥ Equipment

Movements in this account are as follows:!

September 30, 2019 (Unaundited)
Computer Transportation

Equipment Equipment Total
Cost
Balance al beginning of period PRS, 800 P1,631,375  P1,717.175
Additions . e .- N e
Balance at end of period 85,800 1,631,375 1,717,175
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance al beginning of petiod 62,920 396,062 458,982
Depreciation 12,870 244,706 257,576
Balance at end of period 75,790 640,768 716,558
Carrving Amount Fi0.010 POROLG0T  PLOOOGTT




__ December 31, 2018 {Audited)
Computer ltansportalion

Lquipment Equipment Tatal
Cuost
Balanece al beginning of year FRS,E00 £1,577,000 B1.662, 800
Additions _ - 54,375 54,375
Balance at end of year 85,800 1,631,375 1,717,175
Accumudated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 45 760) 78,850 124,610
Depreciation 17,160 317,212 334,372
Balance at end of vear 62.920 396,62 458,952
Carrying_ﬁumnunf PQE,__EED P1,235313 £1,258,193

On February §, 2018, the Company entered inlo an operating lease agreement with Marcventures
Mining and Development Corporation (MMDC), a related parly under common conirol, for the
lease of the transporlation equipment until October 7. 2019 (see Note 13).

Rent income from the lease of transportation equipmen! amounted lo #0.7 million and
£0.9 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively, ’

10. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liahilities

This account consists of:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

{(Unaudited) (Audited)
Liabilities arising from the MOA P151,104,972 BI51,104972
Dividends payable 10,985,443 10,985,443
F.ental deposits 5,972,642 5972.642
Accried expenses 1,707,296 2117206
Statulory payables 70 2,607

Others 3,196,210 3,240,210
#172,967,533 173,423,080

Liabilities arising from the MOA pertain to estimated transfer taxes and registration fees relaled to
the transfer of assets from its development bank operations to BDO/PINC and other related
liabilitics, primarily from unremitted collection of assigned roceivables and sale of foreclosed
properties for the account of PDIC (see Note 1). This account also includes praovision for prabahle
losses to cover estimated losses from claims.  As allowed under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, certain information is not disclosed until final selllement as it
might prejudice the Company’s position on the matler.

Ihvidends payable pertains to the Company's dividend for cumulative, nonpatticipating,
nonvoting, redeemable and converlible preferred stock that were declared prior to the Comyprany's
incurrence of deficit.

Rental deposits represent long-outstanding rental deposits thal have not heen claimed by the
Cormpany's previous tenants.

Acerued expenses perlain to accrual of outside services. professional fees and association dues,
among others. These are normally seltled in the next financial vear.

Others include statutory payables and refunds of tenanis related to the Company’s previous
operations, These are noninteresi-bearing, unsecured and are normally settled in the next financial
year or upon demand.



11. Equity

Capital Stock

The movement in capital stock are as follows:

Beptember 30, 2019 (L andited) Dieoeinber 31, 2018 ¢ Audited)
Number of Mumber of
Shures Amoeunt Shares Amount

Common stoeclk - B1 par valuz T
Authorized 30000000900 T3 0400, WM, D 3000000000 #3000, 00,6400
Sedaoribed:
Balance at beginning of pesiod TU0,208 616 TiHLI98. 616 TODIYE 616 MFEE A5
Conversicn of prefered to commng stock . - £ =
Balanee at end of peried TIHLIDH. 616 TN,208 616 0,295,615 TG A9E A1
Preferred stock - B] par value
Antlitised 2,000,000,000 P23 0 0 2,000,000, 00 ~ BEAOD000,000
Lisvied and outsianding: )
Balunce at beginning of pedod 14,366,260 14,366,244 L4 366,260 14,366,260
Conversion of preferred fo cotmon stock = s : aa
Balance at exd of period 14,366,260 14,366,260 143662 14366360

714,664,576 PT14.664476 714,664 276 B4, a6 R

The Company has 1,594 and 1,598 stockholders as at september 30, 2014

2018, respectively.

and December 31,

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s issued and subseribed sharcs as at

Seplember 301, 2019;

Number of shares issued  Percentage of
and subscribed shares
Mon-public shareholdings:
a. Related parties 575,733,986 82.21%
h. Affilialcs, directors and officers 1,005 0.00%
Public shareholdings 124,563,625 17795
Total TOU298,616 1D, 000
The high and low trading prices of the Company’s stock are as follaws:
Chaarfer High Low
January to September 2019
First B1.36 P1.12
Second 1.40 1.03
Third 1.98 1.21
Japuary to December 2018
First P1.64 1.5
Second [.62 1.09
Third 1.66 )
Fourth 1.26 .10

The preferred stock has the following salient features:

a. Cumulalive, nonparticipating, nonvoting, redeemable and converlible at the oplion of the

Company.

b, Cash dividend rate initially at 4.50% per annum based on par value, which shall be
automatically adjusted to 9.00% per annum upon full payment of the subscription price.

¢, The Company may, al any time at ils option, wholly or partially redeem the outstanding
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preferred stock plus acerued dividends thereon. When such cal] for redemption is made, the
holders of the preferred stock may opt to convert the preferred stock to common stock,

On October 10, 2001, the BOD approved an option to stockholders of preferred shares of
extending the maturity of shares for another five years for a 2% additional dividend on the 9%
regular dividend.

Equity Restructuring
Axg discussed in Note 1, on March 23, 2018, the SEC appraved the Company’s equily restructuring

to reduce its deficit by applying its APIC amounting to 2,114.9 million.

Y2,

Leases

Operating Lease Commitments

* The Company entered into cancellable lease agreements fur a period ranging from one to
thirteen years renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties and subleased the properties
under the same terms.

*  On February 8, 2018, the Company entered into an operating lease agreement with MMDC for
the lease of the transportation equipment until Octoher 7, 2019 (see Note 9),

Rent income amounted to £0.7 million and 0.9 million in 2019 and 201 8, respectively, Rent
receivable amounted to B1,3 million and 1.1 million as at September 30, 2019 and December
31, 2018, respectively (see Note 5).

Related rent expense amounted to RB0.07 million and 22,62 million in 2019 and 2018,
respectively,

. Belated Party Transactions

Outstanding balances and transactions with related parlies are as Tollows:

Amount of Transaction Dulstanding Balance
Mature of Pl 2018 September 3, 2019 December 31,
Trunsaction (Unaudited) LAudited) {(Unaudited) 2018 {Audited)
Receivables
Leary Receivables
Entity under cormmon contrel Larsaim B OPHOKLOOO BL6,000,000  P26,000.000
Intorest income {H9,833) 433,334 341,667 431,500

Fenr Receivablos
Entily under commen control Fent income 745,201} 25000 1,076,400 BOG 518

PITALS 067 P2724].018

Due from related parties

Entity under common control _Advances PIIT,154 PR A00,000 ¥R.107,154 7,940,000
e to a related party
FParent Company Advances B— PAO000, 050 FI13880,000  P12,8R0,000

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Partics

Loans Receivables
In 2018, the Company granted 1-year unseeured loan with 10% per annum inlerest to MMDC dug in
2019,



Due to and from Related Parties

Outstanding balances are unsccured, noni nterest-bearing, payable on demand and settlement
oceurs in eash. The Company has not made any pravision for impairment losses relating 1o the
amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporling date by taking
into consideration the financial position of the related parly and the market at which the related
party operates,

On December 22, 2015, the Company cntered into a management agreemont with the Parent
Company to oversce and supervise the Company’s business matters until December 31, 2017. On
December 3, 2018, the Company ohtained approval from its stockhalders to enler into & new
management with the Parent Company.

Kev Management Personnel
The Company has no key management personnel. It accounting and administrative funclions are
provided by a related parly at no cost to the Company.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

a. In the normal course of the Company's prior operations, there are cutstanding commilments,
pending litigations and contingent lizhilities which are not reflected in the financial statements.
The Company does not anticipate significant losses as a result of {hese transactions,

b, As discussed in Note 1, under the MOA dated September 12, 2002 hetween the Company and
BDO/PDIC, the Company apreed to transfer its assets and liahilities from its development
banking operations to BDO/PDIC. The Compiany agreed to hold BDO free from #ny contingent
claims, labor and minority issues and concerns arising (rom related assels and Labilities sill
managed by the Company until these are assumed by BDO, Further, the Company agreed to
indemnify BDO aguinst losses, claims and damages BDO may suffer in the event such
contmgent claims, labor and minority issues aflect BDO's rights under the MOA.

The Company has accounted for separately, assels from ils development banking operation
pursuant to the MOA. 11 still has in its possession litles of real esiate properiies from its
development banking operations with an aggrepate fair valuc of BS27.8 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, Moreover, the Company has cash of £13.9 million as al
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, arising from the proceeds of sale of a property.

15. Basic Loss Per Share
The basic and diluted loss per share were computed as fallows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

{(Unaudited) {Audited)
Net loss (2,544 8R8) (P24,573,027)
Less dividend rights of preferred stockholders
for the period = 1,581,671
Loss attributable to common stockholders {2,544,888) 20,154,698)
Divided by weighted average number of
comrmoen stock 700,298,616 700,208 A1
Basic loss per share | (P0.004) (®0.037)

The conversion feature of the Company’s preferred stock has potential antidilutive effect. The
Cormpany has no diluted income per share in 2019 and 2018 because the Company is in a nel loss
position,
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16. Financial Risk M anagement Objectives and Policies

The Commpany’s principal financial instruments c
to officers, employees and service providers), due from related
as FVOCI, accrued expenses and other current lia

a related party.

omprise of cash, receivables (excluding advances
parties, equity securities designate]
bilitics (excluding statutory payables) and due to

The main rizks arising from the finaneial insiruments of the Company are credil risk and liquidity
risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing the risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outst
counterparty defaull on its oblipation. The Company’s
from cash in banks and receivables {excluding ady
providers) and due from related parties and equity

amounts of the financial
relation Lo financial assets,

The aging analyses of financial assets as al Sep

{ollows:

anding financial instruments should a
exposure to credit risk arises primarily
ances W officers, employees and service
securitics designated as TVOCL  The carrying

assets represent the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in

tember 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are as

September 30, 2019 {Unaudited)

Neifther Past

Pasl Tvue But Mot Impaired

Due Nuar Less Than FPast Duc and
Impaired 30 Days 31-of Days lmpaired Total
Financial Assets at Amaortized Cost
Cash in hanks P1,296,207 P- i P- F1,194,207
Meceivables* 27442067 . = 62,515,672 89,957,739
Due from related partics ~ B167.154 - - - B67,154
N 37,905,418 = - 62,515,672 421,100
Financial Assoty at FYOCT
Buuity securities designated as FYOCT 500,000 - - - S0 000
' P3BA4015,428 P P B6LSIS6TE PLOOM 1,100
*Excluding advances to officers, emplayees and serviee providers aoonging to P23 millian, ' o
i December 31, 2014 {Audited)
Meither Past Past Due But Mot [paired
Due Mor Less Thin Past Die amd
Tnpaired 30 Days AL-60 Days Trpairesd Total
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Cash in hanks B5,5397 ni4 . £ . B5,597 656
Receivahles* 27,364,244 - - 62,515 672 HOETO016
Duc from related parties 940,000 - — : TR40,000
- 40,901,130 - — 62515672 (03417602
Financial Assets at FVOC]
Equity securibies desipnated ze FYOC7] 500,000 - - - S00,000
B41,401,930 P B BGISISET2 BIOR 917600

*lxcluding advaness fo officers, entplevess and service provlders amoniing ta P22 milllay

Credit Cuality of Financial Assets,  The credil quality of the Company’s fingnecial assets are being
managed by using internal credit ratings such as high grade and standard grade.

High grade - pertains 1o counterparty who is not expected by the Company to default in settling ity
obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal.

Standard grade - include financial assets thal are considered moderately realizable and some
accounts which would require some reminder follow-ups to obtain settlement from the
counterparty,



The Company has assessed the eredit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired as high grade.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its financial
obligations when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain fiexibility by maintaining
suflicient cash to meet all foresesable cash needs.

The Company also maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility, The policy
of the Company is to first exhausi lines available from affiliated companies before local bank lines
are availed of. The Company seeks 1o manage its liquid funds through cash planning on a weekly
basis. The Company uses historical tigures and expericnces and forecasts from its cash receijis
and disbursements. As part of its liquidity risk management, the Company regularly evaluates its
projected and actual cash flows.

As al September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, accrued expenses and other current Tabilities
(excluding statulory payables) and due to a relaled parly agoregating PLE6E million and
P187.3 million, respectively, are generally due and demandable,

3| Puge



